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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

Honorable Mayor and Members of the 
Municipal Assembly 

Municipality of Aguadilla, Puerto Rico 

POBox3043 
Yauco PR 00698-3043 

Tai. (787) 856-6220 
Fax (187) 856-6233 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities. each major fund, and the 
aggregate remaining fund infonnation of Municipality of Aguadllla, Puerto Rico, as of and for the yeat ended June 
30, 2007, Which collectively comprise the Municipality of Aguadilla, Puerto Rico's basic financial statements as listed 
in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of Municipality of Aguadilla, Puerto Rico's 
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Governmental Auditing standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement An audit includes 
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit 
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our 
opinions. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective 
financial position of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of 
the Municipality of Aguadilla, Puerto Rico, as of June 30. 2007, and the respective changes in financial position for 
the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generaly accepted in the United States of America. 

In accordance with Government Auditing standards, we have also issued our report dated December 13, 2007, on 
our consideration of the Municipality of AguadHla, Puerto Rico's internal control over financial reporting and on our 
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, aoo grants. The purpose of that report 
is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of 
that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That 
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Govemm8flt Auditing Standards and should be 
read in conjunction with this report in considering the results of our audit. 

The management's discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 3 through 18 and 52 
through 53, are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are supplementary information required by 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We have applied certain limited 
procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and 
presentation of the supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on 
it. 

ROMAN TORO & CO., CSP Cerlified Public Accountants and Business Consultants 
PO BOX 3043 YA UCO PR 00698-3043 · TEL. (787) 856-6220 · FAX: (787) 856-6233 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

(CONTINUED) 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of fonning opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise 
the Municipality of Aguadilla, Puerto Rico basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of 
federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and 
Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and is not a required part 
of the basic financial statements of Municipality of Aguadilla, Puerto Rico. The schedule of expenditures of federal 
awards have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in 
our opinion, are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. 

Yauco, Puerto Rico 
December 13, 2007 

Stamp #2263769 was affixed to 
the original of this report 

7>~..: h ("/:. 
~,;N TORO & CO., CSP 

LICENSE #35 - IN FORCE 

2 
ROMAN TORO & CO., CSP Certified Public Accountants and Business Consultants 

PO BOX 3043 YA UCO PR 00698-3043 · TEL. (787) 856-6220 • FAX: (787) 856-6233 
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COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADILU\ PUERTO RICO 

MANAGEMENrs DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007 

As management of the Municipality of Aguadilla, Puerto Rico, we offer readers of the Municipality's financial statements 
this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the Municipality for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007. 
We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with the financial statements which follow 
this section. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

Highlights for Government-wide Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements report Information about the Municipality as a whole using the economic 
resources measurement focus and accrual basis of accounting: 

• The assets of the Municipality Governmental Activities, on a government-wide basis, exceeded its liabifities at the 
close of fiscal year 2007 by $118,862,262 and 2006 by $115,964,508, as restated (net assets). 

• The assets of the Municipality Business-Type Activities, on a government-wide basis, exceeded its liabi!lties at 
the close of fiscal year 2007 by $11, 755, 728 and 2006 by $11,576,844 (net assets). 

• The total net assets of the Municipality, on a government-wide basis, exceeded its liabilities at the close of fiscal 
year 2007 by $129,617,990 and 2006 by $127,541,352, as restated. 

• Total Revenues decreased by $681,617 (1.33%) and expenses increased $859,410 (1.8%) in comparison with 
year2006. 

• Net change in net assets amounted to $2,076,638, a decrease of 53.7% with respect to prior year (2006) net 
change. 

Highlights for Fund Financial Statements 

The fund financial statements provide detailed information about the Municipality's most significant funds using the current 
financial resources measurement focus and modified accrual basis of accounting: 

• At the close of the current fiscal year, the Municipality's governmental funds reported combined ending fund 
balances of $42,316,367, a decrease of $4,278,276 In comparison with the prior year, principally for the 
investment in capital assets that are considered expenditures in the modified accrual basis. 

• Enterprise funds reported combined fund net assets of $10, 755, 728, a decrease of $821, 116 in comparison with 
the prior year, due to a transfer of $1,499,420 to the general fund. Without this transfer the result of operation of 
the enterprise funds was positive by $678,304. 

• The General Fund reported an excess of revenues over expenditures and other financing sources and uses of 
$1,306,249 and unreserved fund balance of $8,409,827. Unreserved fund balances increased $3,n9,461 from 
prior year. 

General Financial Highlights 

• The investment In net capital assets as of June 30, 2007 was $105,675,025 (net of related debt), $95,839,734 
from governmental activities and $9,835,291 from business-type activities. 

• Long term debt general and special obligations decreased to $60, 108, 158, approximately a decrease of 1.5% 
($887,288) with respect to prior year balance. 

• Other long term debt increases and net reductions from payments amounted to $2,237,548 and $1,828,345, 
respectively. Such increases represent principally the accumulation of compensated absences during the fiscal 
year. 

ROMAN TORO & CO., CSP Certified Public Accountants and Business Consultants 
PO BOX 3043 YA UCO PR 00698-3043 · TEL. (787) 856-6220 · FAX: (787) 856-6233 3 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADILLA, PUERTO RICO 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE l>. 2007 

• On a budgetary basis, actual revenues exceeded actual expenditures by $1.231.941, net of $822.325 
designated general fund for future expenditures (transfers out to special fund). 

• All Estimated Revenues increase as follow: $305,128 of property taxes. $1,002,774 in volume of business 
taxes, $121, 721 of intergovernmental, $505,796 of construction taxes, $1,415,507 of interests, and $713 in 
miscellaneous, The Municipality does not modify the budget for this additional resources. Also, economies 
were generated during the years in the amount of $2,005,196. Total Variances amounted to $5,356,835 or 
200Ai of estimated resources that represent the best performance of the budget in the last decade. 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The Municipality's basic financial statements comprise three components: (1) management discussion and analysis 
(presented here), (2) basic financial statements, and (3) required supplementary information. 

COMPONENTS OF THE F1NA.JVCIAL 
STATEMENTS 

• • r I 

ManJltllClllt:DI Discussion and &sic F°lDmciaJ ~IS Required SuppkmentRry 
uuJysi.s lnlOrmalioa 

Coic1111111:nl·H1dc Fu1a1JC.ial FwKi Sldlcme1ll> 
SfalC/llt.'11/S 

,\ otcs lo die Fui:u1C1al Sl;ucmcnts 

The Municipality's basic financial statements consist of two kinds of statements. each with a different view of the 
Municipality's finances. The government-wide mancial statements provide both long-term and short-term information 
about the Municipality's overall financial status. The fund financial statements focus on major aspects of the 
Municipality's operations, reporting those operations in more detail than the government-wide statements: 

Basic Financial Statements 

• Government~Wlde Financial Statements 

The government-wide statements report information about the Municipalty as a whole using accounting 
methods similar to those used by private-sector businesses. They are prepared using the flow of economic 
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. 

The Statement of Net Assets presents information on all of the Municipality's assets and liabilities, with the 
difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in the Municipality's 
net assets are an indicator of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating. Other non-financial 
factors such as the condition of the Municipality's roads and other infrastructure may need to be considered 
to assess the overall health of the Muricipality. 

ROMAN TORO & CO., CSP Certified Public Accountants and Business Consultants 
PO BOX 30./3 YA UCO PR 00698-3043 · TEL. (78 7) 856-6220 · FAX: (787) 856·6233 4 
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COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADILLA, PUERTO RICO 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007 

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the govemmenf s net assets changed during 
the year. All changes in net assets (current year's revenues less expenses) are reported as soon as the 
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, 
revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in 
future fiscal periods. 

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the Municipality that are principally 
supported b; taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are 
intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type 
activities). The governmental activities the Municipality include general government, public works and 
sanitation; public safety, culture and recreation, housing, welfare, and community development and 
education. These activities are primarily financed through property taxes, other local taxes and 
intergovernmental revenues. The business-type activities of the Municipality include the Aguadilla's 
Waterfalls Aquatic Park and Aguadilla Ice Skating Arena. 

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 19-20 of this report. 

• Fund Financial Statements 

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been 
segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Municipality, like other state and local governments, 
uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of 
the funds of the Municipality can be divided into two categories: governmental funds and proprietary funds. 
The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the Municipality's most significant 
funds. Funds are accounting devices that the Municipality uses to keep track of specific sources of funding 
and spending for particular purposes. Some funds are required by Federal and Commonwealth regulations, 
as well by bond covenants. 

Governmental Funds - The Municipality's basic services are included in governmental funds, which are 
used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental activities in the government­
wide statements. However, unlike the government-wide statements, the governmental funds are prepared 
using the flow of current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of 
accounting. Under this approach the financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of 
external resources, as welt on balances of expendable resources available at year end. 

Because the focus of governmental funds is nanower than that of the government-wide financial 
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for govemmental funds with similar information 
presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers 
may better understand the long-term impact of the government's near-term financing decisions. Both the 
governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and 
changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between govemmental funds 
and govemmenta/ activities. 

ROMAN TORO & CO., CSP Certified Public Accountants and Business Consultants 
PO BOX 3043 YA UCO PR 00698-30./3 · TEL. (787) 856-6220 · FAX: (787) 856-6233 s 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUAOILLA, PUERTO RICO 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007 

The Municipality maintains over one hundred individual governmental funds. Information is presented 
separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, 
expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the general fund, head start fund, CDBG fund, Marketplace 
Loan fund, Real Marina fund and debt service fund, which are considered to be major funds. Data for the 
other governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. 

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 21-26 of this report. 

The Municipality adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general fund. A budgetary comparison 
schedule has been provided for the general fund to demonstrate compliance with this budget. 

Proprietary Funds - The Municipality maintain only one type of proprietary fund. Enterprise funds are used 
to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial 
statements. The Municipality uses enterprise funds to account for its Aguadilla's Waterfalls Aquatic Park and 
Aguadilla Ice Skating Arena. 

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only in 
more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for the Aguadilla's 
Waterfalls Aquatic Park and Aguadilla Ice Skating Arena, both of which are considered to be major funds of 
the Municipality. 

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 27-29 of this report. 

• Notes to the financial statements 

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the 
governmental-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found on 
pages 30-51 of this report. 

• Required supplementary information 

Provides additional information to better understand the financial position of the Municipality and contains 
the Budgetary Comparison Schedule for the General Fund that can be found on pages 52-53 of this report. 

ROMAN TORO & CO. , CSP Certified Public Accountants and Business Consultants 
PO BOX 3043 YA UCO PR 00698-30-13 · TEL. (787) 856-6220 · FAX: (787) 856-6233 6 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADILLA, PUERTO RICO 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE MUNICIPALITY AS A WHOLE 

Net Assets 

The following table presents a summary of the Statements of Net Assets as of June 30, 2007 and 2006: 

Table1 

Cu1181lt and non-cu1181ll assets ........... . 
Capi1al assets (As Reslated) ...•.•........• .. 

Total A1S81s ········-·················-·· 
Current liabllties •••.•.....••..••..•.•...•..••••...• 
Deferred teVenues ................................. . 
Long-term liablitles ................................ . 

Total Llabllltles ·---- ---­
Net Assets: 

lnvestmert In capital assets, Net of 
Related Debt (As Restated) •........ 

Restricted. ........................................ .. 
Unrestricted (As Reslaled) ............... . 

Tolal Net Assets - ·----·-· 

Commonwaalth of Puarto Rico 
Municipality of Aguadlla, Puerto Rico 

Statement of Net Assets 
A1 of June 30, 

Governmental Actlvlles Business-Type Activities 

2007 2006 2007 2006 

$ 62,805,946 $ 65,093,054 $ 1,187,957 $ 1,796,488 
1~.11~.z~ 1ll~36.~l! l!.~.~l JQ,082,:!1~ 
!l!§.ta!!,§lY !92.529.903 jj,023.248 u.m.002 

3,179,816 2,719,564 185,673 236,721 
8,846,834 6.959,225 

§§.001,782 ~.§§§,!Xl6 ~1,847 65,437 
78.058,432 76.565.395 267.520 302.158 

95,839,734 93,073,015 9,835,291 10,082,514 
17,932.162 19.501.465 
~.090,366 ~.~.028 l!22,43Z 1.~~.330 

1131~~ 1115.!lit!illll 11D~UI i l1.ml!ff 

TOTAL 

2007 2006 

$ 63,993,903 $ 66,889.542 
H~.~.~~ 13Z,5ll!,363 
207,~,942 2",408,!KI~ 

3,365,489 2,956,285 
8.846,834 6,959.225 

66,11~,629 66,~2,043 
78.325,952 76.867.553 

105,675,025 103, 155,529 
17.932.162 19.501.465 
6,0j0,803 4,884,358 

ll29i§ll!l!IO 1127 5'1 3S2 

Net assets (assets over liabftities) may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial position. 
Assets exceeded liabilities by $129,617,990 at the close of the most recent fiscal year. 

The largest portion of the Municipality's net assets reflects its investment in capital assets {e.g., land, buildings, 
equipment, and infrastructure) for $105,675,025 [total capital assets less accumulated depreciation and less any 
related outstanding debt used to acquire those assets]. The Municipality uses these assets to provide services to its 
citizens and consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. The resources needed to repay the 
debt related to these capital assets must be provided from other sources, because capital assets are not generally 
liquidated for the purpose of retiring debt 

Restricted net assets represent resources that are subject to external restrictions on how they may be used. 

Unrestricted net assets are the part of the net assets that can be used to finance day-tCKfay operations without 
constrains established by debt covenants, enabling legislation or other legal requirements. 

As of June 30, 2007 the Municipality presented unrestricted net assets of $6,010,803. This balance was affected by 
long tenn obligations such as compensated a~nces $5,103,150, and other debts for the amount of $820.474 for 
which the Municipality did not provide funding in prevbus budgets. Historically, such obligations have been budgeted 
on a pay as you go basis without providing funding for ther future liquidation. There is $920.437 in unrestricted net 
assets reported in connection with the Municipality's business-type activities. 

ROMAN TORO & CO., CSP Certified Public Accountants and Business Consultants 
PO BOX 30./3 YA UCO PR 00698-3043 · TEL. (787) 856-6220 · FAX: (787) 856-6233 7 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADILLA. PUERTO RICO 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE MUNICIPALITY AS A WHOLE, Continued 

An additional portion of the Municipality's net assets ($17,932, 162) represents resources that are subject to external 
restrictions on how they may be used. There were an decrease of $1,569,303 in restricted net assets. See Figure 1. 

FBJRE1 
COmmrMealth d PUerlD Rim 

te\ric:ipaltvd '9 alla 
Net.Assets bySouas 

$120,CXX>,<XD 
$100,CXX>,(XX) 

$00,CXXJ,(XX) 
$6),CXXJ,CXX> 
$40,CXXJ,OOO 
$20,000,000 

$-

ROMAN TORO & CO .. CSP Certified Public Accountants and Business Consu/tanls 
PO BOX 30./3 YA UCO PR 00698-30./3 · TEL. (787) 856-6220 · FAX: (787) 856-6233 8 
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COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADILLA, PUERTO RICO 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007 

Changes In net assets 

The following table summarizes the changes in net assets for the years ended June 30, 2007 and 2006: 

Table2 
Changes In Net Assets 

For Fiscal Years Ending June 30, 

Governmental ActlvHles Buslneu·Typt Activities TOTAL 

2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 

Revenues: 

Program Revenues: 
Charges for Services ......................... $ 228,490 $ 176,743 $ 3,075,350 $ 3.268.417 $ 3,303,840 $ 3,445,160 
Operating Grants and Conlribullons . 10,435,747 9,871,071 10,435.747 9,871,071 
Capital Grants and Contributions ...... 124,280 1,580,850 124,280 1,580,850 

General ReYenues: 
Property Taxes .................................. 12,465,186 12.257,260 12,465,186 12,257,260 
Voklme of Business Taxes ................ 9,132,473 10,016,589 9,132,473 10,016,589 
Construction Taxes ............................ 1,853,366 2,632,322 1,853,366 2,632,322 
lntelgovemmental .............................. 9,641,505 8,470,360 9,641,505 8,470,360 
Interests ............................................. 2,269,507 1,469,993 2,269,507 1,469,993 
Olher General Revenues .................. 1,~8,672 1,4~2,1~ ~M91 1,J28,263 1,492,179 

Total revenues ............................ ~Z.4~,ZZ§ 4Z.~.a§Z a,124,~1 3,268,41Z l!Q,5~,167 ~1,m,1M 

Governmental Activities Expenses: 

General Admfnis1ration ...................... 19,982,885 19,094,354 19,982,885 19,094,354 
Pubic Safety ...................................... 1,666,842 1,n&,161 1,666,842 1,776,161 
Public Works ...................................... 1,874,964 1,800,400 1,874,964 1,800,400 
C~re and Reaeation ...................... 979,368 1,361,111 979,368 1,361,111 
Heallh and Sanitation ........................ 3,057.282 2,135.284 3,057,282 2,135,284 
Education ........................................... 5,381,175 7,057,884 5,381,175 7,057,884 
Human Services and Welfare ............ 5,582,451 4,780,771 5,582,451 4,780,771 
Urban Development.. ........................ 4,826,215 4,905,990 4,826,215 4,905,990 
Loss on Disposition of Asset ............. 135,122 135,122 
Interest Costs ..................................... z.~.~ 2.a~.m 2,544,~ 2.~~.Z§Z 

Total expenses ............................ §,Q30,§jl 4~.ZZ1.722 §,0;!!,~2 4~,W.Z22 

Buslneu-Type ActlvHlts Expenses: 

Aguadilla's Walerfalls Aquatic Palk .. 1,373,748 1,182,640 1,373.748 1,182,640 
Aguadla Ice Skating Arena .............. 1.QZ2J!!!!! 1,1§a,75Z 1,QZZ,889 1,1§a,757 

Total expenses ............................ 2,446,§aZ Z,346,39Z 2,!46.~7 2.~2.asz 

Special Item - Gain on Sales of Bwldilg 869,000 869,000 
Transfer-In (Out) ......................... ............ l.4~.~2Q 212.m 11,m~20> (212,7~) 

Changes In net assets--.................. 2,897,754 3,781,430 (821,116) 705,235 2,076,638 4,486,665 
Net assets - beginning, as Restated• .... 115.964.508 1 12,l~.QZ§ 1M1§,§!4 lMZ1.~ 127,~1.ill 1za.~.681 
Net ISSlllll - ending ........ ,_._ ... __ .. , llll~~ 111~,!jM 508 I lQZ~Z28 I H,m§ff lj29 &il.!!!!Q 1m~jm 

Prior Period Adjustment to capital assets, long-tenn debts and revenues. 

ROMAN TORO & CO., CSP Certified Public Accountants and Business Consultants 
PO BOX 3043 YA UCO PR 00698-30./3 · TEL. (787) 856-6220 · FAX: (787) 856-6233 9 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RJCO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADILLA, PUERTO RICO 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007 

Governmental Actlvltles. The govemmenfs net assets increased by $2,897,754 during the current fiscal year. 

For the most part, increases in expenses closely paralleled inflation and growth in the demand for services. Also, 
non-capitalized expenses were incurred for maintenance of capital assets. 

Figure 2 present revenues comparison by sources of the governmental activities during the past two years: 

FIGURE2 

Co••••• .... ol~Rlco 
~d ...... PIBIDAlc:o 

--~~llcllwilMI 
Pilcll y-ended Jina~., .... 21116 

Approximately 22°A> of the Mmicipality's revenues came from grants and contributions, 26% from property taxes, 
volume of business taxes 19% and 33% from other sources. The Municipality's expenses cover a range of services. 
The largest expenses are general administration with 43%, education representing approximately 11%, human 
services and welfare with 12°A>, and urban development with 10%. Program revenues of the Municipality covered 
23% of total expenses. 

ROMAN TORO & CO .. CSP Cer1ifled Public Accoun/ants and Business Consulranrs 
PO BOX 3043 YA UCO PR 00698-3043 • TEL. (787) 856-6220 · FAX: (787) 856-6233 10 
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Commonwealth of Puerto Rico 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADILLA, PUERTO RICO 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

FOR THE FISCAL VEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007 

Expenses increased 1.7% or $759, 170 in comparison with 2006 year. Significant increases were registered on 
donations and services incurred for the benefit of the community. Also, increases were on interest costs for new 
financing in prior years and to additional capital assets maintenance and other non-capitalize costs. 

Figures 3 present expenses by function of the governmental activities during the fiscal year 2006-2007: 

FIGURE3 

CorrrnolMlllll\~ Puen> Rico 
Munlcfp9Qtyol ~.....,Rim 

E.,._br~Advllles 

flKll v .. Ended 11.1111311, '111111 
(llDalln) 

19,982.885. 4~ 

D Public Wortcs 

• EduQ!lon 
oc~ra •nd Rec:ieallon • Heahh and Santatlon 
•Loss on DisllOSIUon d Asset a Jnll!rest Costs 

Business· Type Activities. The government's net assets decreased by $821, 116 during the current fiscal year, after 
the transfer of $1,499,420 to general fund. 

For the most part, increases in expenses closely paralleled inftation and growth in the demand for services. Charges 
for setVices decrease by $193,067 during year. 

ROMAN TORO & CO .. CSP Certified Public Accountants and Business Consultants 
PO BOX 3043 YA UCO PR 00698-30./3 · TEL. (787) 856-6220 · FAX: (787) 856-6233 II 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADILLA, PUERTO RICO 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007 

Figures 4 present revenues by sources and expenses comparison of the business-type activities during the past two 
years: 

FIGURES4 

CClii81Uii cald• ol P\atD Rieu 
MLmlclpllOty of ......... Pue1D RJco 

n-.-br~-ausm..-~Adhltltm 
Flscal y_... Ended Jl819 30, 

$3,SOQOOO ,----- - -­
$3,30ll000 t--­

$3,100,000 +--- ..­
$2,90q.OOO +-- ­
$2,700,000 L__ ...... __ 

-'<al<D1 

~(QllD1 

_\.(QllD1 

•2001 

Clw-ges for Services 

Cornmnvalth of Puerto Rk:o 
tblldpially of Aguadi!Ja. Puerto Rico 

E>IPll•• IP/Sowas -Business-Type Activities 
(.hDoli.s) 

Waterfalls £e Skating Total expenses 

1,373,748 1,012,889 2,~637 __. 

1,182,640 1,163,757 2,346,397 

ROMAN TORO & CO .. CSP Certified Public Accountants and Business Comultams 
PO BOX 3043 YA UCO PR 00698-30./3 · TEL. (787) 856-6220 · FAX: (787) 856-6233 12 
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COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADILLA, PUERTO RICO 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007 

The following table focuses on the cost of each of the Municipality's largest functions/programs as well as each 
functions/program's net cost {total cost less fees generated by the programs ood program-specific intergovernmental aid): 

Table3 
Net Cost of Municipality 

Fiscal years ended June 30, 

Total Cost of Services Net Cost of Services 

2007 2006 2007 2006 
Governmental Activities: 

General Administration ......................... $19,982,885 $19,094,354 $19,754,395 $18,917,611 
Public Safety ......................................... 1,666,842 1,776,161 1,666,842 1,776,161 
Public Works ......................................... 1,874,964 1,800.400 1,874,964 1,800,400 
Culture and Recreation ......................... 979,368 1,361,111 979,368 1,361,111 
Health and Sanitation ............................ 3,057,282 2,135,284 3,057,282 2,135,284 
Human Services and Welfare ............... 5,582,451 4,780,771 2,679,090 2,069,878 
Urban Development .............................. 4,826,215 4,905,990 2,911,762 1,526,661 
Education .............................................. 5,381,175 7,057,884 (361 ,038) 1,696,185 
Loss on disposition of Asset ................. 135,122 135,122 
Interest Costs ........................................ 2,544,588 2.35~,767 2,544,588 2,359,767 

Total expenses ................................ 46,030,8~2 45,271,722 35,242,375 33,643,058 

Business-Type Activities: 
AguadiUa's Waterfall Park ..................... 1,373,748 1,182,640 (734,152) (779,210) 
AguadiUa Ice Skating Arena .................. 1,072,889 1,163,757 105,439 (142,810) 

Total expenses ................................ 2,446,6~7 2 ,346,~97 (628,713} (922,020) 

Total expenses .................................... ~s.~zz.~~ S4Z16181119 ~~.§Zt,088 S321Z21 10J§ 

Some of the cost of governmental activities in 2007 was paid by those who directly benefited from the programs 
{$228,490) and other governments and organizations that subsidized certain programs with grants and contributions 
{$10,560,027). The $35,242,375 net cost of services was covered by other general revenues including property, volume of 
business taxes, intergovernmental ood others. Business-type activities in 2007 were paid by those directly benefited from 
the programs. 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE MUNICIPALITY'S FUNDS 

Governmental funds 

The focus of the Municipality's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows and balances of 
resources available for spending. Such information is useful in assessing the Municipality's financing requirements. In 
particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a Municipality's net resources available at the end 
of a fiscal year. For the Fiscal year ended June 30, 2007, the governmental funds reported combined ending fund 
balances of $42,316,367, a net decrease of $4,278,276 in comparison with the prior year. This decrease was caused 
primarily by a use of some non-m~or funds in the amount of $6,708,641, principally for the investment in capital assets 
that represent expenditures. Of total combined fund balances, $8,409,827 {20%) constitutes unreserved fund balance of 
general fund. The remainder of fund balance is reserved for specific purpose to indicate that is not available for new 
spending. 

ROMAN TORO & CO .. CSP Certified Public Accountants and Business Consultants 
PO BOX 30./3 YA UCO PR 00698-30./3 · TEL. (78 7) 856-6220 · FAX: (787) 856-6233 13 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUAOILLA, PUERTO RICO 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007 

The general fund is the operating fund of the Municipality. Unreserved fund balance of the general fund represents 
approximately 87.7% of total ending general fund balance. For the year ended June 30, 2007, the fund balance of the 
general fund increased by $1,306,249 when compared with the prior year. The principal component of the net 
increases is an excess of revenues with corresponding control in operating e)(J)enditures. 

GENERAL FUND BUDGET ARY HIGHLIGHTS 

The general fund orlglnaJ budget for the fiscal period 2006-2007 was less than prior year budget by approximately 
$4.0 million due to the closes of some industries and the corresponding reduction in property taxes and volume of 
business taxes. Amendmen1s to the original budget for additional $1.8 million are approved by the Municipal 
Legislature, principally by intergovernmental revenues and the transfer from the enterprise funds. Budget 
expenditures were adjusted properly for the increase in estimate; principally in transfer to other funds (for future 
capital expenditures). Actual revenues were greater than the revised budgeted revenues by $3,351,639 ($305, 128 in 
property taxes, $1,002,774 in volume of business taxes. $121. 721 in intergovernmental. $505.796 in construction 
taxes, $1,415,507 of interests, and $713 in miscellaneous]. 

Also, economies were generated during the years in the amount of $2,005, 196. The Mmicipality reported less 
expenditure than appropriations in those functions on payments for purchase of equipment and professional and 
nonprofessional services. Total Variances amounted to $5,356,835 or 20% of estimated resources that represent the 
best perfonnance of the budget in the last decade. 

Figure 5 present the budgetary comparison by their components during the fiscal year 2006-2007: 

35.00 

30.00 

25.00 

20.00 

15.00 

10.00 

5.00 

FIGURES 

CoillllDm.\ealth of Pua1D Rico 
Municipality of AguildDla, PueltD Rico 

F"JSCal Ymrendecl lune 30, '1/:H1 
Bll>GETARY ANAL YSS 

(ta Million of $) 

• ORIGINAL BUDGET 
• FINAL BUDGET 
OACTUAL REVENUES 

0 EXPENDITURES 
CVARIANCE 

ROMAN TORO & CO., CSP Cert(fied Public Acco1111tanls and Business Consu/1ants 
PO BOX 3043 YA UCO PR 00698-3043 · TEL. (787) 856-6220 · FAX: (787) 856-6233 14 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADILLA, PUERTO RICO 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007 

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

Capital assets 

At the end of the fiscal year, the Municipality has invested $143,950,039 (net of accumulated depreciation) in a broad 
range of capital assets, including buildings, parks, roads, bridges, land and equipment This amount represents a net 
increase of $6,430,676 or 4.68% more than prior year, as restated. 

The Municipality acquired a total of 
$9,749,437 of capital assets during the 
fiscal year 2006-2007 as follows: 

• Purchase of land - $227,000 
• Construction in progress of 

buildings and facilities -
$8,762,875 (of which 
$2,758,093 was terminated 
and presented as addition to 
buildings) 

• Acquisition of Motor Vehicles -
$425,299 

• Acquisition of Machinery and 
Equipment - $334,263 

Motor vehicles, machinery and 
equipment was eliminated at a net loss 
of $135, 122. 

Others important repair and 
maintenance of infrastructure (not 
capitalized) was realized during the past 
year. 

Capital Assets, net 
As of June 30, 

DESCRIPTION 

GoVERHllENTAL AcTMTIES: 

Non-Depreciable Capital Assets: 
Land 
Construction in Progress ............................. . 

Depreciable Capital Assets: 
Buildings ...................................................... . 
Infrastructure ............................................... . 
Motor Vehicles ............................................ .. 
Machinery and Equipment.. ........................ .. 

Total Governmental Capital Assets ............ .. 

BuSINESS-TYP£ AcTMnEs: 
Non-Depreciable capital Assets: 

Construction in Progress ............................. . 

Depreciable Capital Assets: 
Builcings ..................................................... .. 
Motor Vehicles ............................................ .. 
Equipment .................................................. .. 

Total Business-Type capital Assets ........... .. 

TOTAL ..................................................... .. 

2007 

$ 47,609,940 
13,711 ,612 

36,209,033 
32,059,265 
2,482,963 
2,041,935 

134,114,748 

347,504 

9,196,657 
23,348 

267,782 

9,835,291 

$143.950.039 

Figures 6 in next page present the components of capital assets during the fiscal year 2006-2007: 

TABLE4 

2006 

$ 47,382,940 
7,706,830 

34,456,402 
32,688,783 

2,997,709 
2,204,185 

127,436,849 

347,504 

9,416,283 
18,800 

299,927 

10.082,514 

S13l.519,363 

ROMAN TORO & CO .. CSP Certified Public Accountants and Business Consultants 
PO BOX 3043 YA UCO PR 00698-3043 · TEL. (787) 856-6220 · FAX: (787) 856-6233 15 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADILLA, PUERTO RICO 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007 

FIGURES6 

Comrronwealtfl of P uer1D Rico 
Municipality of Aguadilla, Puertn Rico 

Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2007 
Capital Assets - Governmental Activities 
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Convronwealth of Puerto Rico 
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Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2007 
Capital Assets - Business-Type Activities 
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Long term debt 

COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADILLA, PUERTO RICO 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007 

New special obligations were issued for new capital projects in the amount of $1,529,712. Important projects for our 
communities should be constructed with the funds available in the capital project fund. 

At year-end, the Municipality had $60, 108, 158 in general and special bonds and notes, a decrease of 1.45% with 
respect to prior year. Following is a summary of the Municipality's outstanding debt as of June 30, 2007 and 2006: 

TABLES 

Outstanding Long-term Debt 
As of June 30, 

Governmental Activities 
(As restated) 

2007 2006 

General and special obligation bonds and notes $ 60,108,158 $ 60,995,446 
Property Taxes 126.158 126,158 
LIMS 494.316 . 
Solid Waste Landfill . 521.080 
Claims and Judgments 200,000 200,000 
Compensated absences 5,103,150 4,667183 
Total $ 66,031,782 $ 66,509867 

More detailed information about the Municipality's long tenn liabilities is presented in Note 8 and 9 to the financial 
statements. 

Rgure 7 present the components of long-tenn debts during the fiscal year 2006-2007: 

FIGURE7 

Coi111u1uuealU1 rA Pua1D Rico 
M&ric:lpallly rA Agui1dllla, Pun> Rico 

Flscal Year ended June~ 'JaT1 

Oulstandlng Long-Term Debls 

• General Obligations 
O Speclal Obligations 
a Other Debts 

ROMAN TORO & CO .. CSP Certified Public Accountants and Business Consultants 
PO BOX 3043 YA UCO PR 00698-3043 · TEL. (787) 856-6220 · FAX: (787) 856-6233 17 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RJCO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADILLA, PUERTO RICO 

MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007 

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGET 

The Municipality's selected and appointed officials considered many factors when setting the fiscal year 2006-2007 
budget. One of these factors is the economy. Among economic areas considered are the population growth 
estimates, personal income, housing statistics and unemployment rates. The Municipality's unemployment rate now 
stands at 13.4%, which compares with the Commonwealth rate of 12.1%. 

The Municipality applied a conservative approach in development budget estimates. Amounts available for 
appropriations in the General Fund tor the fiscal year 2007-2008 are $30 million, approximately $1 million more than 
the fiscal year 2006-2007. The Municipality expects an increase in revenues for the next years due to a new sales tax 
enacted by state legislature and Municipality ordinance during fiscal year 2007-2008. Also, revenues increases from 
other sources are demonstrative of the economic development from new commerce and stability of the 
manufacturing industry. Budgeted expenditures are expected to stabilize accordingly to the projected revenues with 
and increase in salaries for the personnel. Among planned projects, this budget may be adjusted in accordance with 
economic injection projected when the construction project promoted by the Municipality and others private projects 
were develop during the year. 

CONTACTING THE MUNICIPALITY'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, and creditors with a general overview of the 
Municipality's finances and to demonstrate the Municipality's accountability for the money it receives. If you have 
questions about this report or need additional information, contact the Municipality's Finance Department at [(787) 
891-1005] or P.O. Box 1008, Aguadilla, Puerto Rico 00605. 

ROMAN TORO & CO .. CSP Certified Public Accountants and Business Consultants 
PO BOX 3043 YA UCO PR 00698-30-13 • TEL. (787) 856-6220 · FAX: (787) 856-6233 18 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADILLA, PUERTO RICO 

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 

I JUNE30 2007 

I 
GOVERNMENTAL BUSINESS· TYPE 

ACTMl'IES ACTIVITIES TOTAL 

I 
ASSETS: 

Cash and Investments (Note 2) .............................................. $ 34,860,464 $1,224,608 $ 36,085,072 
Cash with Fiscal Agent ........................................................... 18,080,092 18,080,092 

I Receivables (net): 
Property Taxes ...................................................................... 241,663 241,663 
Federal Grants ...................................................................... 7,717,350 7,717,350 

I 
Others ................................................................................... 1,624,821 55,821 1,680,642 

Internal Balances ...................•.........•...................................... 92,472 (92,472) 
Deferred Charges ................................................................... 189,084 189,084 

I 
Capital Assets (Note 6): 
Land, Improvements and Construction in Progress .............. 61,321,552 347,504 61,669,056 
Other Capital Assets [Net of Depreciation) ............................ 72.7931196 9.487.787 82.2801983 

I TOT AL ASSETS ........•...........•................•......................... 196,920,694 11.023.248 207,943,942 

LIABILITIES: 

Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses ............................. 2,400,978 185,673 2,586,651 
Accrued Interest ...................................................................... 778,838 778,838 
Deferred Revenue ................................................................... 8,846,834 8,846,834 
Long-Term Liabilities (Note 7): 

Due within One Year ........................................................... 5,656,815 71,400 5,728,215 

I Due in More than One Year ................................................. 601374.967 10.447 60.385.414 

TOTA.L LIABILITIES .•.•..••••••••..••••••••••••••••.••..••.•••..•.•.•..•.•.•.. 78.058.432 267.520 78.325.952 

I NET ASSETS 

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt.. .................. 95,839,734 9,835,291 105,675,025 

I Restricted for: 
Capital Projects ................................................................... 2,952,324 2,952,324 
Head Start Program ............................................................. 3,187,071 3,187,071 
Debt Service ........................................................................ 6,083,742 6,083,742 
Community Development Projects ...................................... 3,399,882 3,399,882 
Other Purposes ................................................................... 2,309,143 2,309,143 

Unrestricted ........................................................................... 51090.366 920.437 s.010.803 

TOTAL NET ASSETS ......................................................... 1na.w.212 11 O.Z55,Z28 S129161Z1990 
See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Stataments. 
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COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADILLA, PUERTO RICO I 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

I FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007 
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I 

fl!NC1JtWstpsnr..ptMS 

00¥emmantat Adivlties: 

Mayor and Municipal Legblature ........... .. 
General Government. ............................... . 
Public Safety ............................................ . 
Public Wortcs ........................................... . 
Cul1lle and Reaealion ........................... . 
Health and Sa'lilation .............................. .. 
Public lnstuction .................................... .. 
Human Services and Welfare ................. .. 
Urban Development ................................. . 
Loss on Disposition of Asset .................... . 
lnlerest on Long-Tenn Debt... .................. . 

Total Govemmemal Activities .. ""-" 

Business· Type Activities: 

Aguadllla's WalBffalls Aquatic Parll ......... . 
Aguadlla Joe Skating Arena ..................... . 

Total Bullness-Type AdlvltJes '""-" 

Total Adlvlllel .""-·-·--"".""" .. " 

ExfENSES 

$ 1,549,319 
18,433,566 

1.666,842 
1,874,964 

979,368 
3,057,282 
5.381.175 
5,582.,451 
4,826,215 

135,122 
2544588 

4§,030.892 

1,373,748 
1.072,889 

2,446.637 

MUl.lgj 

General R8V811U85: 
Taxes: 

CHARGES FOR 

SEIMCES 

s 
228,490 

228.490 

2,107,900 
967,450 

3.D75.350 

l3.»3.Mll 

0PERATWG CAPITAL 
GIWITS AHO GRANTS AND 

CONnllBunoNs COllTRlllUTIOMS 

$ $ 

5.742.213 
2,903,361 
1,790,173 124,280 

--
1g,m ,1H ...1Wl!2 

- -
--

llD~lli ~ 

Plq)8rty Taxes, levied for General Purposes .............................. .. 
Plq)8rty TilJIBS, levied !or Debt SelYioe ........................................ . 
Volume of Business TaxM .. ........................................................ .. 
Conslruetion T&lUIS ...................................... ......... ......................... . 

lntergOl'9mlll8lllal ............................................................................... . 
Interest .............................................................................................. . 
Miscellaneous .................................................................................... . 

Transfer.; .......................... ........................................................................ . 

Total General Revenues and T ransfefs ............................................. . 

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS ............................. _ .............. -···--··---

Net Assets- Begimillg of Year ............................................................... . 

NET ASSETS- ENCING OF VEAR ................ - ............... ___ _ 

See accompanying Notes to Basic Fllendal SIBtllments. 

NET (ElcPEHsE) REvENUE AllD 
CHNfGES IN NET Aljl!ETS 

GolEAHMENTAL 8 USJNESS-TVPE 
ACT1'11TIES ACTIVITIES 

($ 1,549,319) $ 
(18,205,076) 
(1,666,842) 
(1,874,964) 

(979,368) 
(3,057,282) 

361.038 
(2,679,090) 
(2,911,762) 

(135,122) 
12544,5881 

(35.242.375) 

~~!2.375) 

8,670.371 
3,794,815 
9,132,473 
1,1153,366 
9,641,505 
2,269,507 
1,278,672 
U99!ZO 

~.l~.lZ!! 

2,197,7St 

11§.~.~ 

734,152 
(1Q5.439l 

§211.113 

m.71~ 

49,591 
(l.4l!H20> 

(1,449,829) 

(821,116) 

11,5Z6,844 

112·~~ lj~ Z55Z28 

TOTAL 

($ 1,549,319) 
(18,205,076) 
(1.666,842) 
(1,874,964) 

(979,368) 
(3,057 .282) 

361,038 
(2,679,090) 
(2,911, 762) 

(135,122) 
12,544.588) 

'35,2'2,375) 

734,152 
(105.439) 

628,713 

(M,§13,662) 

8,670,371 
3,794,615 
9,132,473 
1,853,366 
9,641,505 
2,269,507 
1,328,263 

~.§!l!l,;122 

2,076,638 

127,~1.~2 

122H2Z!l!!I! 
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- - - --------------
COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADILLA, PUERTO RICO 

BALANCE SHEET-GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
JUNE 30 2007 

MARKETPLACE OTHER TOTAl. 
HEAD START CDBG LOAM REAL MARJHA DEBT SERVICE GOVERNMENT Al. GOVERNMENTAL 

GENERAL Fu.ro FUND FUNO FUND FuHO FUNDS FUNDS ---- -
ASSETS 

Cash and Investments (Note 2) ............. $16,885,734 $ 250 $ $ $14,962,802 $ $ 3,011 ,678 $34,860,464 
Cash with Fiscal Agsnt... .................... ... 6,935,712 5,668,694 5,475,686 18,080,092 
Receivables: 

Prcperty Taxes .................................... 241,663 241,663 
Federal Gra.its ..................................... 4,117,291 2,881,749 718,310 7,717,350 
Dua from Other Funds (Note 4) ........... 2,573,972 500,000 3,073,972 
Others Receivables ............. ................ ·- 11,600 .. - 1.613.221 1.624.821 ---- - -- - -- - --
Total Assets ........... '""""''""-"""""" ; 19.IGU69 .UJ17,541 W.9Ufi $6,935.71~ $14.962.802 S.'5.668.694 $11,318.895 $65,598,362 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 

liabilities: 
Account Payable .................................... $ 472,347 $ 47,445 $ 143,467 $ $ $1,595,000 $ 1,168,647 3,426,906 
Account Interest .. .................................. nS,838 n8,838 
Due to Governmental Units (Note 5) ...... 206,807 206,807 
Due to Other Funds (Note 4) .................. 500,000 45,638 2,435,862 2,981,500 
Others .................... ....... .......................... 362,265 362,265 
Deferred Revenues: 

Volume of Business Tax ...................... 8,324,815 8,324,815 
Property Tax ......................................... 241,663 241 ,663 
Federal Grants ........ ............................. 3,692,268 2,Z44.~14 522,019 6,959,201 

Total Liabilities ........................................ 10,107,§97 3,739,713 2,888,a~1 2,41~.~76 4,126,528 23,281,995 
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COMMONWEAL TH Of PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADILLA, PUERTO RICO 

BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS, Continued 

JUNE 30 2007 

~START 
GENERAL FUND 

Fund Balances: 

Reserve for: 
Encumbrances ..................................... 1,183,645 
Debt Service ......................................... 

Unreserved ............................................. 8,409,82Z ~77.82~ 

Total Fund Balances .............................. 9,5~,472 ~77,828 

TOT AL LIABILITIES AND 
FUND BALANCES -····-............ - ........ l19i7011369 s :\1121541 

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Sfatemenls. 

-

CDBG 
FUND 

4,968 

4,968 

S2189313A9 

- - - - - -

MARKElPLAce OTHER TOTAL 
LOAN REAL MARINA DEBT SERVICE GoVERNllEHT AL GOVERNllEHT AL 
FUND FUND FUND FUNDS FUNDS 

1,183,645 
3,249,218 3,249,218 

6,935,Z12 14,962,802 1,192,a67 37,883,504 

6,9~,712 14,962,802 3,249,218 7,192,367 42,316,a§Z 

S6.l~~.U2 IH196i1ao2 1516681694 SU1318,895 W,5981362 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADILLA, PUERTO RICO 

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET 
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 

JUNE 30 2007 

Total Fund Balances - Governmental Funds (Page 21 ) ............................................................... .. 

Amount reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement of Net Assets (Page 20) 
are different because: 

Capital Assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and therefore are 
not reported in the funds. In the current period. these amounts are: 

Non Depreciable Capital Assets ........................................................................ .. 

Depreciable Capital Assets ................................................................................. . 
Infrastructure Assets ........................................................................................... . 
Accumulated Depreciation .................................................................................. . 

Total Capital Assets .................................................................................... . 

Other Assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and therefore are not 
reported in the funds: 

Deferred Charges ................................................................................................ . 

Some of the Munlclpality's revenues will be collected after year-end but are not available 
soon enough to pay for the current period's expenditures and therefore are deferred in 
the funds: 

Head Start ........................................................................................................... . 
CDBG .................................................................................................................. . 
Property Taxes .................................................................................................... . 

Tota! Deferred Revenues ........................................................................... . 

Some liabilities are not due and payable in the current penod and therefore are not reported 
in the funds. Those liabilities consist of: 

General Bonds and Special Bonds .................................................................... .. 
Compensated Absences ..................................................................................... . 
Claims ................................................................................................................. . 
Property Tax Advances ....................................................................................... . 

Total Long-Tenn Liabilities ............................... .......................................... .. 

Total Net Assets of Governmental Activities (Page 19) ............................................................... .. 

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial StatemenlS. 

$61,321,552 

73,124,391 
42,274,594 

(42,605.789) 

3,692,268 
2,744,914 

241 .663 

58,513,158 
5,103,150 

200,000 
620.474 

ROMAN TORO & CO.. CSP Certified Public Accountants and Business Consultants 

s 42,316,367 

134, 114,748 

189,084 

6,678,845 

(64.436.782) 

$118.862.262 

PO BOX 3043 YA UCO PR 00698-3043 · TEL. (78 7) 856-6220 • FAX: (787) 856-6233 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADILLA, PUERTO RICO 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30 2007 

MARKETPt..AcE OTHER TOTAL 
HEAD START CDBG LOAN REALMARINA DEBT SERVICE GovERNllENTAL GoVERNllENTAL. 

GENERAL FUND FUND FUND FUND FUND FUNDS FUNDS 

REVENUES 

Property Taxes ....................................... $ 8,428,708 $ $ $ $ $ 3,794,815 $ $ 12,223,523 
Volume of Business Taxes ..................... 9,132,473 9,132,473 
Federal Assistances ............................... 5,745,949 2,498,731 2,903,361 11,148,041 
Intergovernmental .................................. 6,652,273 2,026,000 963,232 9,641,505 
Licenses and Pennlts ............................. 1,853,366 1,853,366 
Interest Income ...................................... 2,269,507 2,269,507 
Miscellaneous ............................... .......... 710,913 a3,ss1 762,562 1,507,162 

Total Revenues ...................................... 29,047,2~0 5,745,949 2,532,418 2,026,000 a.794,815 ! ,629,155 47,n5,5n 

EXPENDITURES 

Current: 
Mayor and Municipal Assembly ............. 1,463,533 1,463,533 
General Government .............................. 15,469,581 8,821 971,540 16,449,942 
Public Safety .......................................... 1,574,827 1,574,827 
Public Works .......................................... 1,541 ,662 n .623 1,619,285 
Culture and Recreation .......................... 897,258 897,258 
Health and Sanitation ............................. 2,737,153 183,011 2,920,164 
Public Instruction .................................... 5,534,232 5,534,232 
Human Services and Welfare ................ 3,035,622 2,468,799 5,504,421 
Urban Development ............................... 915,412 1,752,156 1,515,497 4,183,065 

Capital Outlay ........................................... 319,701 1,819 1,701,655 7,726,262 9,749,437 
Debt Service: 
Principal .................................................. 2,642,233 2,642,233 
Interest and Other Changes ................... 2,544,588 2,544,588 

Total Expenditures ................................. 27,954,749 s,534,2a2 1,840,419 1,Z01,655 5,186,§21 12,865,109 55,082,985 

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) 
Expenditures ........................................... 1,092,491 211,717 691,999 {1 ,701 ,65~} 2,026,000 {j ,392,006} (8,235,954} (I,307,408} 
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COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUAOILLA, PUERTO RICO 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE ­
GOVERNMENT AL FUNDS, Continued 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30 2007 

MARKETPLACE 
HEAD START CDBG LOAH 

GENERAL fUMD FUND FUND 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 

Proceed of Note ..................................... $ $ $ $ 
Transfers - In ......................................... 1,036,083 463,337 
Transfers-Out ...................................... 1e22.a2s1 {1,210,Z-42} 

T otat Olher Financing sources 
and Uses ............................................. 213,758 (£47,405) 

Net Change In Fund Balances ............... 1,306,249 211,717 ( 55,400) (1,701,655) 

Fund Balance - Begnning ....................... 8,287.223 166,111 oo.a1' 8,637,367 

FUND BALANCE - ENDING """"'" ....... HZZ,12§ s ~· lf,935,1~2 

See accompanyttYJ NOleS 10 Basic Financial Statements. 

OTHER TOTAL 

REA1. MARINA DEBT SERVICE GovERNllENT AL GoVERNMElfTAL 

FUND FUND FUNDS FUNDS 

$ $ $ 1,529,712 $ 1,529,712 
2,035,476 3,534,896 

{2,409) {2,035,476) 

2,035,4Z6 1,~21,m 3,~,132 

2,026,000 643,470 (6,708,651) (4,278,276) 

12,936,802 2,605,Z48 1a,so1,018 46,594,643 

11 ~16211102 a.w.2111 s z.is2,:1&1 M2131§.31iZ 
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COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADILLA, PUERTO RICO 

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES 
IN FUND BALANCE OF GOVERNMENT AL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTMTIES 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007 

Net Change In Fund Balances - Government Funds (Page 25) 

Amount reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement of Activities (Page 20) 
are different because: 

Governmental funds report capital ouUays as expenditures. However, in the Statement of 
Activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported 
as depreciation expense. In the current period, these amounts are: 

Capital Assets ...................................................................................................... . 
Depreciation Expense ......................................................................................... . 

Excess of Capital Assets over Depreciation Expense ................................. . 

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial resources are 
reported as revenues in the funds and vice versa: 

Head Start ........................................................................................................... . 
CDBG .................................................................................................................. . 
Property Tax ........................................................................................................ . 

Governmental funds only report the proceeds received in the disposal of assets. In the Statement 
of Activities, a gain or loss is reported for each disposal. Thus, the change in net assets differs 
from the change in fund balance by the cost of the disposed asset ............................................... . 

Bonds proceeds provide current financial resources to governmental funds, but issuing debt 
inaeases Long-Term Liabilities in the Statement of Net Assets. In the current period, 
proceeds received was ......•............................................................................................................. 

Repayment of long-term principal is expenditure in the governmental funds, but issuing debt 
reduced Long-Term Liabilities in the Statement of Net Assets. In the current period 
repayments were ............................................................................................................................. . 

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of current 
financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds. 
These activities consist ot. 

Decrease in Landfill Closure and Postclosure Cost ........................................... .. 
Bond Issue Costs Amortization ........................................................................... . 
lnaease in Compensated Absences ................................................................... . 

Total Additional Expenses ........................................................................... . 

Change In Net Assets of Governmental Activities (Page 20) ........................................................ . 

See accompanying Notes ID Basic Financial StatemenlS. 

$ 9,749,437 
(2.936.416) 

(3,736) 
(584,278) 

241.663 

183,012 
(15,084) 
(435,967) 

ROMAN TORO & CO .. CSP Certified Public Accountants and Business Consultants 
PO BOX 30./3 YA UCO PR 00698-30-13 · TEL. (787) 856-6210 · FAX: (787) 856-6233 

$(4,278,276) 

6,813,021 

(346,351) 

(135,122) 

(1 ,529,712) 

2,642,233 

(268.039) 

$2.897,754 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADILLA, PUERTO RICO 

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS- PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

JUNE30 2007 

BUSINESS· TYPE ACTMTIES- ENTERPRISE FUNDS 

ASSETS: 

Current Assets: 
Cash ................................................................................................ . 
Receivables ..................................................................................... . 

Total Current Assets ................................................................... . 

Noncurrent Assets: 
Construction in progress ............................................................... . 
Buildings and Equipment ............................................................. .. 
Less Accumulated Depreciation .................................................... . 

Total Capital Assets ................................................................... .. 

TOT AL ASSETS ....................................................................... . 

LIABILITIES: 

Current Liabilities: 
Accounts Payable ........................................................................... . 
Due to Other Funds ......................................................................... . 
Compensated Absences ................................................................ . 

Total Current Liabilities ............................................................... . 

Noncurrent Liabilities: 

Compensated Absences ................................................................ . 

Total Llabllltles .......................................................................... . 

NET ASSETS 
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt ........................... . 
Unrestricted ................................................................................... . 

TOTAL NET ASSETS ................................................................. . 

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements. 

AGUADILLA'S 
WATERFALLS 

AQUATIC PARK 

$ 981,356 
42.193 

1.023.549 

347,504 
6,436,972 
(2.704.428) 

4.080.048 

5.103,597 

114,919 
45,651 
23.413 

183.983 

10,447 

194,430 

4,080,048 
829,11~ 

S~1~0911§Z 

AGUADILLA 
ICE SKATING 

ARENA 

$ 243,252 
13.628 

256.880 

6,093,620 
(338.377) 

5.755.243 

6.012.123 

70,754 
46,821 
47.987 

165.562 

165,562 

5,755,243 
91,318 

l~.846.~j 

ROMAN TORO & CO., CSP Certified Public Accountants and Business Consultants 
PO BOX 30./3 YA UCO PR 00698-30./3 · T£l. (787) 856-6220 · FAX: (787) 856-6233 

TOTAL 

$ 1,224,608 
55.821 

1.280.429 

347,504 
12,530,592 
( 3.042,805) 

9.835.291 

11.115.720 

185,673 
92,472 
71 .400 

349.545 

10,447 

359,992 

9,835,291 
920,437 

S1 O.Z~5,Z28 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUAOILLA, PUERTO RICO 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES 
IN FUND NET ASSETS-PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007 

BUSINESS· TYPE ACTIVITIES- ENTERPRISE FUNDS 

OPERATING REVENUES: 

AGUADILLA'S 
WATERFALLS 

AQUATIC PARK 

Charges for Services........................................................................ $ 2.107.900 

Total Operating Revenues .......................................................... 2.107.900 

OPERATING EXPENSES: 

Contractual Services ....................................................................... . 
Payroll Expenses ............................................................................ . 
Fringes Benefits .............................................................................. . 
Utilities ............................................................................................. . 
Repair and Maintenance ................................................................. . 
Supplies and Other Expenses ......................................................... . 
Depreciation .................................................................................... . 

Total Operating Expenses ............................................................ .. 

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES): 

Interest Revenues ......................................................................... . 

Income (loss) Before Transfers ........................................... . 

Transfers - Out ............................................................................. . 

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS ............................................... .. 

NET ASSETS, JULY 1 2006 ............................................................ .. 

NET ASSETS, JUNE 30, 2007 ......................................................... . 

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements. 

158,275 
324,661 
39,244 

443,326 
108,723 
135,523 
163,~ 

1,373,748 

49,591 

783,743 

(1.499.420) 

(715,sn) 

5,624,844 

s 4.9Q9.167 

AGUADILLA 
ICE SKATING 

ARENA 

$ 967.450 

967.450 

82,967 
387,590 
73,729 

218,788 
31,135 

145,732 
132,948 

1,072,889 

(105,439) 

(105,439) 

5,952.000 

$5.846.561 

ROMAN TORO & CO. , CSP Certified Public: .4ccozm1an1s and Business Consu/Janls 
PO BOX 30./3 YA UCO PR 00698-3043 · TEL. (787) 856-6220 · FAX: (787) 856-6233 

TOTAL 

$ 3.075.350 

3.075.350 

241,242 
712,251 
112,973 
662,114 
139,858 
281,255 
296,944 

2,446,637 

49,591 

678,304 

(1.499,420) 

(821,116) 

11,576,844 

S10.755.728 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADILLA, PUERTO RICO 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS- PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007 

BUSINESS· TYPE ACTIVITIES- ENTERPRISE FUNDS 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 

Receipts from Customers and Users .............................................. . 
Payments to Suppliers .................................................................... . 
Payments to Employees ................................................................. . 

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities .................................. .. 

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPIT AL FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 

Internal Activities - Receipts (Payments) to Other Funds .............. .. 
Operating Subsidies and Transfers to Other Funds ........................ . 

Net Cash Used from Non capital Financing Activities .................... . 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED 
FINANCING ACTMTIES: 

Purchases of Capital Assets .......................................................... .. 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTMTIES 

Interest Received ............................................................................ . 

Net Decrease in Cash ................................................................... . 

Cash, July 1, 2006 ............................................................................ . 

Cash, June 30, 2007 ........................................................................ . 

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash Provided 
(Used) by Operating Activities: 

Operating Income ............................................................................ . 
Adjustment to reconcile operating income to net cash provided 
by operating activities: 
Depreciation ................................................................................ . 
(lnaease) Decrease In Current Assets: 
Receivables ............................................................................... . 

Increase (Decrease) in Current Liabilities: 
Accounts Payable ...................................................................... . 
Compensated Absences ........................................................... . 

Nat Cash Provided by Operating Activities .............................. . 

See aa:ompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements. 

AGUADILLA'S 
WATERFALLS 

AQUATIC PARK 

$2,074,707 
(885,098) 
(364.250) 

825.359 

15,823 
(1.499.420) 

(1.483.597) 

(32.331) 

49.591 

(640,978) 

1.622.334 

$ 981.35§ 

$ 734,152 

163,996 

(33,193) 

(39,251) 
(345} 

I 825,359 

AGUADILLA 
ICE SKATING 

ARENA 

$ 953,822 
(490.419) 
(444,564) 

18.839 

(250,874) 

(250.874) 

(17.390) 

(249,425) 

492.677 

s 243.252 

($105.439) 

132,948 

(13,628) 

(11,797) 
16,755 

I 11,839 

RO.Iv/AN TORO & CO., CSP Certified Public Acc:ountants and Business Consultants 
PO BOX 30./3 YA UCO PR 00698-30./3 · TEL. (787) 856-6220 · FAX: (787) 856-6233 

TOTAL 

$ 3,028,529 
(1,375,517) 

(808,814) 

844.198 

(235,051) 
(1,499.420) 

(1.734.471) 

(49.721) 

49.591 

(890,403) 

2.115,011 

$1.224.608 

$ 628,713 

296,944 

(46,821) 

(51,048) 
16,410 

s ~.1i§ 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADILLA, PUERTO RICO 

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The Municipality of AguadiUa, Puerto Rico (Municipality) was founded in the year 1n5, and operates as a governmental unit of the 
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, under the Law Number 81 of August 30, 1991, known as "Autonomy Municipalities Law of the 
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico". The governmental system of the Municipality is composed of the executive and legislative bodies. The 
Mayor is the Chief Executive Officer and is elected every four years in the general elections of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. The 
legislative body consists of 14 Legislators also elected in the general elections of Puerto Rico for a four-year period. 

The Municipality provides services such as: health, public works, sanitation, aids and services to low-income and elderly citizens, 
public safety, housing and urban development. culture and recreation, planning, zoning and other general and administrative services. 

The accounting policies of the Municipality conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America 
(GAAP) as prescribed by the Governmental Accouflting Standards Board (GASB). The GASB is the standard-setting body for 
governmental accounting and financial reporting. The GASS periodically updates its codification of the existing Governmental 
Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards which, along with subsequent GASB pronouncements (Statements and Interpretations) 
constitutes GAAP for governmental units. The following is a summary of the more significant of such policies. 

A. Financial Reporting Entity 

The accompanying basic financial statements include all departments and organizations units whose funds are under the custody and 
control of the Municipality. In evaluating the Municipality as a reporting entity, management has addressed all the potential component 
units. The decision to include a potential component unit in the reporting entity was made by applying the provisions of GASBS No. 14, 
as amended by GASBS No. 39, Determining Whether Certain Organizations Are Component Units - an amendment of GASS 
Statement No. 14. 

GASBS No. 39 provided additional guidance to determine whether certain organization for which the primary government is not 
financially accountable should be reported as components units. A legaUy separate, tax-exempt organization should be discretely 
presented as a component unit if all of the following criteria are met: (a) the economic resources received or held by the separate 
organization are entirely or almost entirely for the direct benefit of the primary government, its component units, or its constituents; {b) 
the primary government, or its component units, is entitled to. or has the ability to otherwise access, a majority of the economic 
resources received or held by the separate organization, and; (c) the economic resources received or held by an individual 
organization that the specific primary government. or its component units, is entitled to, or ha$ the ability to otherwise access, are 
significant to the primary government 

There are two methods of presentation of the component unit in the financial statements: blending - the financial data of the 
component unit's balances and transactions in a manner similar to the presentation of the Municipality's balance; and discrete -
presentation of the component unit's financial data in column separate from the Municipality's balances and transactions. 

The relative importance of each aiterion must be evaluated in light of specific circumstances In order to determine which components 
units are to be included as part of the reporting entity. Our specific evaluations of the aiteria applicable to the Municipality indicate no 
organizations meet the criteria to be included as component units. Accordingly, these basic financial statements present only the 
Municipality as the reporting entity. 

These financial statements present the respective financial position of the governmental and business type activities, each major fund, 
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Municipality, as of June 30, 2007, and the respective changes in financial position, 
where applicable, thereof for the fiscal year then ended. 

30 

ROMAN TORO & CO .. CSP Certified P11blic Acco11ntants unJ Business Consultants 
PO BOX 30-13 YA UCO PR 00698-30-13 · TEL. (787) 856-6220 · Frl.X: (787) 856-6233 
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COMMO~WF.AL TH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADILLA, PUERTO RICO 

NOTES TO Tt-IE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PO!..ICIES (continuation) 

B. Financial Statement Presentation 

The basic financial statements include both government-wide (based on the Municipality as a whole) and fund financial statements. 
Both the government-wide and fund financial statements (within the basic financial statements) categorize primary activities as either 
governmental or business type. 

Government-wide Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements (the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities) report information of all the 
activities of the Municipality. For most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these government-wide financial 
statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovemmental revenues, are reported separately 
from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. 

The focus of the Statement of Net Assets is designed to be similar to bottom line results for the Municipality's governmental activities 
and business type activities. This statement combines and consolidates governmental fund's current financial resources (short-tenn 
spendable resources) with capital assets and long-term obligations. 

The Statement of Net Assets presents the raporting entities' assets and liabilities, with the difference reported as net assets. Net 
assets are reported in three categories: 

• Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt - These consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and 
amortization and reduced by outstanding balances for bonds, notes, and other debt that are attributed to the acquisition, 
construction, or improvement of those assets. 

• Restricted Net Assets - These result when constraints placed on net assets use are either externally imposed by creditors, 
grantors, contributors, and the like, or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

• Unrestricted Net Assets - These consist of net assets which do not meet the definition of the two preceding categories. 
Unrestricted net assets often are designated, to indicate that management does not consider them to be available for general 
operations. Unrestricted net assets often have constraints on resources that are imposed by management, but can be 
removed or modified. 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, generally it is the Municipality's policy to use restricted 
resources first, then the unrestricted resources as they are needed. 

The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment is offset by program 
revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiab!e with a specific function or segment. Program revenues indude 1) 
charges to customers or applicants who purchase. use or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given 
function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a 
particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general 
revenues. 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues and expenses generally 
result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection w!th a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. 
The principal operating revenues of the Municipality's enterprise funds are charges to customers for sale and services. Operating 
expenses for enterprise funds indude the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All 
revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. 

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds. Major individual governmental funds and 
major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements. 
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COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADILLA PUERTO RICO 

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuation) 

Governmental Funds and Proprietary Funds Financial Statements 

The fund financial statements [the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures (Expenses), and Changes in Fund 
Balance/Net Assets} are, in substance, very similar to the financial statements presented in the previous financial reporting model. The 
fund financial statements provide information about the Municipality's funds. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major 
governmental and enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate column. Non-major funds are summarized into a single column. 

Traditional users of governmental financial statements will find the Fund Financial Statements presentation more familiar. The focus is 
on Major Funds, rather than the previous financial model's fund types. This is the manner in which these funds are normally budgeted. 
This presentation deemed most appropriate to (a) demonstrate legal and covenant compliance, (b) demonstrate the source and use of 
liquid resources, and (c) demonstrate how the Municipality's actual experience conforms to the budgeted fiscal plan. 

Since the governmental fund statements are presented in different measurement focus and basis of accounting than the govemment­
wide statements, reconciliation is presented and separate explanation for each differences. 

The Municipality reports its financial position (Balance Sheet) and results of operations [Statement of Revenues, Expenditures 
(Expenses) and Changes in Fund Balance/Net Assets} in funds, which are considered separate accounting entities. The operations of 
each fund are accounted for within a set of self-balancing accounts. Fund accounting segregates funds according to their intended 
purpose and is used to aid management in demonstrating compliance with legal, financial, and contractual provisions. 

C. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting 

Government-wide Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements (the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities) are reported using the 
economic resources measurement focus and the BCCflJB/ basis of accounting. Revenue is recorded when earned and expenses are 
recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash ftows. Grant and similar items are recognized as revenue 
as soon as all erigibllity requirements imposed by the provider have been met. 

Governmental Funds and Proprietary Funds Rnanclal Statements 

The governmental funds financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified 
BCCfUa/ basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when susceptible to accrual; as soon enough thereafter to pay liabiUties of the 
current period. For this purposes, the government considers revenues to be available if they are collected within sixty (60) days of the 
end of the current period. 

In applying the •susceptible to accrual" concept to intergovernmental revenues (federal grants) pursuant to GASBS No. 33, Accounting 
and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Transactions (the Municipality may act as either provider or recipient), the provider should 
recognize liabilities and expenses and the recipient should recognize receivables and revenue when the applicable eligibility 
requirements including time requirements, are met Resources transmitted before the eligibility requirements are met should, under 
most circumstances, be reported as advances by the provider and deferred revenue by the recipient. 

There are essentially two types of revenue. For the majority of grants, moneys must be expended by the Municipality on the specific 
purpose or project before any amounts will be reimbursed. Revenue is, therefore, recognized as expenditures are incurred to the 
extent available. For the other revenue, moneys are virtually unrestricted and are generally revocable only for failure to comply with 
prescribed compliance requirements. These resources are reflected as revenue at the time of receipt or earlier if the susceptible to 
accrual criteria is met. 
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COMMQNWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADILLA, PUERTO RICO 

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuation) 

Expenditures are generally recognized when the related liability is incurred. as under accrual accounting. The exceptions to this 
general rule are the compensated absences and Claims a!'lc! judgments, if any, that are recorded only when payment is due. 

Property taxes, volume of business taxes, licenses ancf pem1its, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered 
to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. All other revenue items Cl'e 
considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the Municipality. 

The Municipality reports the following major governmental funds: 

General Fund - This is the general operating fund of the Municipality. It is used to account for all financial 
resources, except those required to be accour.te: for in another fund. 

Head Start Fund - This is the fund used t::> account for all transacllcns of the Head Start Program. The objectives 
to this program are to provide comprehensive hea!th, ec(ucational, nutritional, social and other developmental 
services primarily to economically-disadvantaged pie-scho(ll children and infants and toddlers so that the children 
will attain school readiness. 

Debt Service Fund - This is used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, long-term 
debt principal and interests. 

CDBG Fund - This is the fund used to account for ali the transactions of the Ccmmun!ty Development Block Grant 
Program. The primarily obj8""tives of lhis program is to d~velopment of viable communities by providing decent 
housing, a suitable living environment and expanded economic opportunities, principally for persons of low and 
moderate income. 

Marketplace Fund - This is the fund used to acc:ount for all financial resources and transactions related to the 
loans for the construction of the Marr.et Place, which is financed by bonds with the Governmental Development 
Bank of Puerto Rico. 

Real Marina Fund - This 1s the fund used to account for all financial resources and transactions related to the loan 
for the construction of the Paseo Real Marina Projoct, which is financed by a Section 108 Loan from the US 
Department of Housing and Uroan Del!elopment (HUD). 

The Municipality reports the following major proprietary funds: 
Aguadil!a's Waterfalls Aquatic Park - This 1s :.ised to account for the operation of the Aquatic Park Las Cascadas. 
This is an amusement park with pools and vari1lus water related attractions. 

Aguadilla Ice Skating Arena - This is the fund used to ac:oount for the operations of the Ice Skate Arena. This 
park consists of an ice skate ring, food court, and meeting rooms. 

The non-major funds are combined in a single column in the fund financial statements. 

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989, generally are followed in both the 
governmental-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict 
guidance of the Governmental Ac:oounting Standards Board. Governments also have the option of following subsequent private-sector 
guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to this same limitation. The government has elected not to 
follow subsequent private-sector guidance. 

M a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial statements. 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUAOILLA, PUERTO RICO 

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuation) 

D. Budgetary Data 

The Municipality's annually adopts the Budget Resolution for all operating funds of the Municipality except for certain restricted 
accounts Special Revenue Funds. Budgetary control is legally maintained at the fund level. The budget is prepared using the modified 
accrual basis of accounting with encumbrance included as budgetary basis expenditures. The Municipality's Budget Resolution 
provides transfer authority (1) to the Mayor and the Management and Budget Director, within and between departments and funds, as 
long as the total budget of the Municipality (net of interfund transfers) is not increased; (2) to the Management and Budget Director to 
implement grant budgets as the grant applications are accepted by the Municipality; and (3) to the Management and Budget Director to 
amend (re-appropriate) each new year's budget, to the extent of outstanding encumbrances, and/or unexpended project/grant 
appropriations at year end. Municipality's Legislature action is required for (1) use of the budgeted Legislature contingency, and (2) the 
approval of a supplemental appropriation(s). During the year, several supplemental appropriations were necessary. 

The budget columns (original and final budgets) of the Budgetary Comparison - General Fund reflect the original budget and the 
amended budget (which have been adjusted for legal.ly authorized revisions of the annual budgets during the year). Appropriations, 
except remaining project appropriations, encumbrances, and unexpended grant appropriations, lapse at the end of each fiscal year. 
Amendments to the budge~ including transfers, require the approval of the Municipal Legislature. All encumbrance appropriations in 
the operating budget lapse at the end of the fiscal year. 

Encumbrances outstanding at year end are reported as reservations of fund balances and do not constitute expenditures or liabilities 
because the commitments will be reappropriated and honored during the subsequent year. 

Since the budgetary basis differs from accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP), actual 
amounts for the General Fund in the accompanying Budgetary Comparison Schedule, is presented on the budgetary basis to enhance 
comparability. 

The principal differences between the budgetary and GAAP bases are the following: 

1. Encumbrances are recorded as expenditures under the budgetary basis and as a reserve of fund balances under GAAP. 

2. lnterfund transactions of the General are not included in the budgetary basis. 

3. Certain accrued liabilities and other debts are not included in the budgetary basis. 

4. Certain revenues susceptible to accrual, i.e., both measurable and available, are not included in the budgetary data. 

The Special Revenue Fund has not been included in the budgetary comparison because balances are not budgeted. Also the budget 
prepared for the Federal Financial Awards Programs included in the Capital Projects and Special Revenue Funds is based on a 
program period which is not necessarily the same fiscal year. Accordingly, ifs not practical to present an annual comparison of budget 
for such programs. 

E. Cash and Investment 

The Director of Finance of the Municipality is responsible for Investing the available resources In certificates of deposit and other short. 
term investments. Investments are made from the available combined funds of the Municipality and, accordingly, it is not practical to 
disclose certificates of deposit and other short-term investments individually by fund in the combined financial statements. Interest 
earned on certificates of deposit and other short-term investments are recognized as revenue in the General Fund. Cash in the Special 
Revenue, Debt Service and Capital Project Funds are restricted; accordingly, resources available were not used for pool investments. 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADILLA, PUERTO RICO 

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuation) 

Cash with fiscal agent represents property tax collections retained by the Municipal Revenues Collection Center and undisbursed 
proceeds of certain bonds, loans or grants which are maintained in a cash custodian account by the Government Development Bank of 
the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. 

Cash balance recognized in the Debt Service Fund is restricted for the payment of the Municipality's obligations, and others are 
restricted for specific projects, such as the acquisition or construction of permanent improvements. This sinking fund is maintained by 
the Governmental Development Bank of Puerto Rico, agency which acts as the insurer and payer of the Municipality's bonds and 
notes issued in accordance with law. 

F. Receivables and Payables 

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred 
to as either "due to/from other funds· (i.e., the current portion of interfund loans) or "advances to/from other funds· (i.e., the non-current 
portion of interfund loans). All other outstanding balances between funds are reported as "due to/from other funds." Any residual 
balances outstanding between the governmentai activities and business-type activities are reported in the government-wide financial 
statement as "interfund balances·. 

Advance between funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, are offset by a fund balance reserve account in applicable 
governmental funds to indicate that they are not available for appropriation and are not expendable available financial resources. 

All trade and property tax receivable are shown net of an allowances for uncollectible, which are determined upon past collection 
experience and current economic conditions. Receivable from Federal Government represents amounts owed to the Municipality for 
reimbursement of expenditures incurred pursuBl't to federally funded programs. 

G. Inventories 

The General, Special Revenue and Capital Project Funds, purchases office and printing supplies, gasoline, oil and other expendable 
supplies held for consumption. The cost of purche?Ses is recorded as expenditure in the appropriate fund and the inventory is not 
recorded in the basic financial statements. 

H. Capital Assets 

capital assets, which include property, plant equipment and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges, sidewalks, and similar items), 
are reported in the applicable governmental or busines!i-type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital 
assets, other than infrastructure assets, are defined by the government as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $500 
(amount not rounded) and an estimated useful life in excess of two years. For improvements other than buildings. the capital outlay 
must be greater than $10,000, extend the estimated use~JI life for ten years, and be greater than 10% of the original cost of the assel 
The government reports infrastructure assets on a network and subsystem basis. Accordingly, the amounts spent for the construction 
or acquisition of infrastructure assets are capitalized and reported in the government-wide financial statements regardless of their 
amount 
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MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADILLA. PUERTO RICO 

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007 

NOTE1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contlnultlon) 

In the case of the initial capitalization of general infrastructure assets (i.e., those reported by governmental activities) the government 
chose to include all such items regardless of their acquisition date or amount. The government was able to estimate the historical cost 
for the initial reporting of these assets through back trending (i.e., estimating the current replacement cost of the infrastructure to be 
capitalized and using an appropriate price-level index to deflate the cost to the acquisition year or estimated acquisition year). As the 
government constructs or acquires additional capital assets each period, including infrastructure assets, they are capitalized and 
reported at historical cost The reported value excludes normal maintenance and repairs which are essentially amounts spent in 
relation to capital assets that do not increase the capacity or efficiency of the item or extend its useful life beyond the original estimate. 
In the case of donations the government values these capital assets at the estimated fair value of the item at the date of its donation. 

Enterprise fund should capitalize interest only on debt actually reported in the fund itself. Interest on debt issued for the benefit of an 
enterprise fund but expected to be repaid from governmental activities should not be capitalized inasmuch as the debt would be 
reported as a liability of governmental activities rather than as a liabUity of the benefiting enterprise fund. 

Depreciation on all assets is provided on the straight-line bas:s over the foUowing estimated useful lives: 

CAPITAL ASSETS YEARS 

Buildings 50 
Improvement Other Than Buildings 50 
Infrastructure 10-50 
Motor Vehicles 5 
Machinery and Equipments 5-10 

I. Compensated Absences 

The Municipality accrues accumulated unpaid vacation and sick leave and associated employee-related costs when earned (or 
estimated to be earned) by the employee. The Municipality's employees are gianted 30 days of vacations and 18 days of sick leave 
annuaUy. Vacations may be accumulated up to a maximum of sixty (60) days and sick leave up to a maximum of ninety (90) days. In 
the event of employee resignation, the employee is paid for accumulated vacation days up to the maximum allowed. Separation from 
employment prior to use of all or part of the sick leave terminates all rights for compensation, except for employees with ten years of 
service who are entiUed to sick leave pay up to the maximum allowed. The Municipality accrued a liability for compensated absences, 
which meet the foUowing criteria: 

1. The Municipality's obligation relating to employee's rights to receive compensation for future absences is attributable to 
employee's services already rendered. 

2. The obligation relates to rights that V9St or accumulate. 

3. Payment of the compensation is probable. 

4. The amount can be reasonably estimated. 

In accordance with the above criteria and requirements as established by GASBS No. 16; the Municipality has accrued a liability for 
compensated absences, which has been earned but not taken by Municipality's employees. All vacation pay is accrued when incurred 
in the government-wide and proprietary fund financiol statements. For the government-wide statements, the current portion is the 
amount estimated to be usea in the following year. For the governmental funds statements. all of the compensated absences are 
considered long-term and therefore, are not a fund liabUity and represents a reconciling item between the fund level and govemment­
wide presentations (see Note 9 on page 46). 
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COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADILLA, PUERTO RICO 

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuation) 

J. Insurance 

The Municipality has insurance coverage for its public facilities, primarily to provide protection from catastrophic losses. Also, principal 
officials of the Municipality are covered under various surety bonds. The Secretary of the Treasury Department of the Commonwealth 
of Puerto Rico is the agent commissioned to place all of the Municipality's insurance coverage. Corresponding premiums payable are 
withheld by the Municipal Revenue Collection Center from quarterly advances of annual property tax and subsidy send to the 
Municipality. 

K. Long-Tenn Obligations 

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements. long-term debt and other 
long-term obtigations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund 
type statement of net assets. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the 
bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount Bond issuance 
costs are reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related debt 

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, 
during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt 
issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance 
costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures. 

L. Fund Equity 

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report reservations of fund balance for amounts that are not available for 
appropriation or are legally restricted by outside parties for use for a specific purpose. Designations of fund balance represent tentative 
management plans that are subject to change. 

M. Reservations of Fund Balance - Governmental Funds 

The governmental fund financial statements present fund balance reserves for those portions of fund balance (1) not available for 
appropriation for expenditures or (2) legally segregated for a specific future use. The reserves for related assets such as inventories 
and prepayments are examples of the former. Reserves for debt service and other specific purposes are examples of the latter. 

N. lnterfund Transactions 

lnterfund transactions are reflected as loans, reimbursements or transfers. Loans are reported as receivables and payables as 
appropriate and are subject to etimination upon consolidation. Reimbursements occur when one fund incurs a cosi charges the 
appropriate benefiting fund and reduces its related cost as a reimbursement. All other interfund transactions are treated as transfers. 
Transfers between governmental or proprietary funds are netted as part of the reconcitiation to the government-wide columnar 
presentation. The Municipality has the following types of transactions among funds: 

lnterfund Transfers - Legally required transfers that are reported when incurred as transfers-in by the recipient 
fund and as transfers-out by the disbursing fund, with receivables and payables presented as amounts due to and 
due from other funds. Advances between funds are also presented as amounts due to and due from other funds. 
However, these transfers and related amounts receivables and payables are considered internal balances and 
activities that have been eliminated in the government-wide financial statements. 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADILLA, PUERTO RICO 

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007 

NOTE1 SUMMARY Of SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuation) 

0. Claims and Judgments 

The estimated amount of Lile liability for dalms and judgments, if any, which is due on demand, such as from adjudicated or settled daims, is 
recorded in the General Fund. The Long-Term Debt Account indudes an amount estimated as a contingent liability or liabilities with a fixed or 
expected due date, which will require future available financial resources for its payment 

P. Use of Estimates 

The preparaion of the basic financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires 
management to make estimates and assu~tions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabHities and disclosures of contingent assets and 
liabilities at the date of the basic financial stciements and the reported revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual result could differ 
from those estimates. 

NOTE 2 CASH AND INVESTMENTS 

Investments consist of certificates of deposit. The Municipality's cash and investments at year-end were entirely covered by the Federal Deposit 
Insurance Corporation (FDIC) coverage, up to a maximum of $100,000 in each bank, and the excess by collateral provided by the banks and held by 
the Department of the Treasury pursuant the applicable laws and regulations. Cash with f1Scal agent is maintained in Interest bearing accounts In the 
Government Development Bank d Puerto Rico and is not collateralized. 

Puerto Rico laws authorize governmental entities to invest In direct obligations or obligations guaranteed by the federal government or the 
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. The Municipaity is also allowed to invest in bank acceptances, other bank obligations and certificates of deposit in 
financial institutions authorized to do business under the federal and Commonwealth laws. 

During the year, the Municipality invested its funds in interest bearing bank accounts and short-term certificates of deposit. As June 30, 2007 the 
market value of investments approximated its carryilg value as follow: 

CERTIFICATE 
OF DEPOSIT 
ISSUED BY 

Popular Bank of Puerto Rico .......................... .. 
Popular Bank of Puerto Rico ........................... . 
Popula- Bank of Puerto Rico ......................... .. 
Popular Bank of Puerto Rico ........................... . 
Popular Bank of Puerto Rico .......................... .. 
Popular Bank of Puerto Rico .......................... .. 
Popular Bank of Puerto Rico .......................... .. 
Popular Bank of Puerto Rico .......................... .. 
Popular Bank of Puerto Rico .......................... .. 
Popular Bank of Puerto Rico ........................... . 
Popular Bank of Puerto Rico .............. ............ . 

Subtotal ........................................................ . 

INTEREST BEARING 
BANK ACCOUNTS 

Santander Bank of Puerto Rico ...................... .. 
Santander Bank of Puerto Rico ....................... . 

TOTAL ......................................................... . 

PRINCIPAL 
NUMBER 

01110000117 
01110000121 
01110000135 
01110000136 
01110000140 
On10000141 
01110000142 
01110000145 
01110000146 
01110000147 
01110000148 

30043~0879 

3004294997 

INTEREST 
AMOUNT 

$ 1,000,000 
5,000,000 
1,000,000 
4 ,000,000 

150,000 
1,000,000 
1,000,000 
1,000,000 
1,000,000 
2,000,000 
~.336,802 

19,486,802 

4,638,219 
2,120.485 

$26 245.506 

RATE 

5.35% 
5.44% 
5.39% 
5.42% 
5.39% 
5.45% 
5.40% 
5.41% 
5.41% 
5.42% 
5.48% 

4.80% 
5.04% 

ExPIRATION 
DATE 

07-06-07 
08-11-07 
08-~5-07 
10-14-07 
08-23-07 
08-27-07 
07-28-07 
08-24-07 
07-25-07 
08-24-07 
09-13-07 

The investments are distributed by the amounts of $13, 120,402 in the Gene:al Fund, $400,000 in the Other Governmental Fund, $600,000 in State 
Assignment Fund. For the Enterprise Funds, the Ice Skating Arena has investment amount of $150,000, and $11,975,104 in Paseo Real Manna 
Fund. 

38 

ROMAN TORO & CO.. CSP Cenified Public Accountants and Business Consultants 
PO BOX 3043 YA UCO PR 00698-30./3 · TEL. (787) 856-6220 · FAX: (787) 856-6233 



I 
I 
I 

I 
I 
I 
I 

COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADILLA. PUERTO RICO 

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007 

NOTE 2 CASH AND INVESTMENTS (continuation) 

The Investment are distributed as follows: 

General Fund ........................................... . 
Paseo Real Marina Fund ......................... . 
Other Governmental Funds ...................... . 
State Assignment Fund .........•.................•. 
Ice Skating Arena .................................... . 

NOTE 3 CUSTODIAL CREDIT RISK RELATED TO DEPOSITS 

$13,120,402 
11,975,104 

400,000 
600,000 
150.000 

$26.245.506 

For an investment, this is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the government will not be able to recover the 
value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. 

As of June 30, 2007, the Municipality's custodial credit risk was approximately $24 million, which is the bank balance of cash 
deposited at the Government Development Bank of Puerto Rico (GOB). These deposits are exempt from the collateral requirement 
established by the Commonwealth. 

Pursuant to the Investment Guidelines for the Commonwealth adopted by GOB, the Municipality may invest in obligations of the 
Commonwealth, obligations of the United States, certificates of deposit commerciRI paper, banker's acceptance, or in pools of 
obligations of the municipa:ities of Puerto Rico, among others. 

NOTE 4 RECEIVABLES 

As of June 30, 2007, the amount of others receivable of the Other Major Funds is $66,616 from nue Ill, $793 from Cemetery, $93,995 
from Department of Labor and $1,451, 157 from Bonds issued but no cash received. 

NOTE 5 DEFERRED REVENUES 

Governmental funds report deferred revenue in connection with receivables for revenues that are not considered to be available to 
liquidate liabilities of the current period. Governmental funds also defer revenue recognition in connection with resources that have 
been received, but not yet earned. At the end of the current fiscal year, the various components of deferred revenue and unearned 
revenue reported in the governmental funds were as follows: 

UNAVAILABLE 

Volume of Business Taxes .................................................................. ........ $ 
Head Start Grant ......................................................................................... . 
CDBG Grant ................................................................................................ . 
Other Governmental Funds (Federal Grants) ............................................. . 

Total Deferred/Unearned Revenue ...................................................... ~$ ==== 

UNEARNED 

$ 8,379,039 
3,692,268 
2,744,914 

522.019 

$15.338.240 

ROMAN TORO & CO., CSP Certified Public Accountants and Business Consultants 
PO BOX 3043 YA UCO PR 00698-30../3 • TEL. (787) 856-6220 · FAX: (787) 856-6233 
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COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADILLA, PUERTO RICO 

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007 

NOTE 6 INTERFUND RECEIVABLE, PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS 

A. INTERFUND RECEIVABLE AND PAYABLE BALANCES 

Due to/from Other Funds at June 30, 2007 are summarized as follows: 

RECEIVABLE FUND 

General Fund 
General Fund 
General Fund 
Other Funds 

TOTAL 

B. INTERFUND TRANSFERS 

PAYABLE FUND 

Other Funds 
Debt Service Fur.d 
Proprietary Funds 
General Fund 

AMOUNT 

$2,435,682 
45,638 
92,472 

500.000 

$3.073.792 

Transfers are indicative of funding for capital projects or debt service, and subsidies of various operations. 

SOURCES TRANSFER TO AMOUNT PURPOSE 

General Fund Debt Service Fund $ 822,325 Debt payments 
Propierary Fund General Fund 1,036,083 Construction Projects 
CDBG Debt Service Fund 1,210,742 Debt payments 
Proprietary Fund CDBG 463,337 Program Income 
Other Fund Debt Service Fund 2.409 Bond Issue Costs 

Total $3.534.896 

NOTE 7 DUE TO OTHER GOVERNMENTAL UNITS 

As of June 30, 2007, balance due to other governmental units of the General Fund for services rendered to the Municipality, consists 
of the following: 

Puerto Rico Department of Labor .............................................................................. .. 
ASG ............................................................................................................................. . 
Retirement Administration ........................................................................................... . 

Total Due to Governmental Units ....................................................................... .. 

AMOUNT 

$ 73,305 
1os.n1 
26.731 

$206.807 

ROMAN TORO & CO .. CSP Certified Puhlic Accountants and Business Consultants 
PO BOX 30./3 YA UCO PR 00698-3043 · TEL. (787) 856-6220 · FAX: (787) 856-6233 
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COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADILLA, PUERTO RICO 
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007 

NOTE 8 CAPITAL ASSETS 

Capital Assets activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007 was as follows: 

BAlANCe 
JULY 1, 

DESCRIPTION 2006 ADJUSTMENTS lllCREASf. 

G<MRHMENTAL AC1MTIES: 

Non-Oepniciable Capital Assets: 
Land ......................................................................... $ 23,960,008 $ 23,422,932 s 227,000 
Consrucllon ii Progress............................................ 7.734.86() !28.!!501 6.762,875 

Total Non-Depreciable Capi1a1Assets ...................... . 

Oepieciable Capital Assets: 
Buildings .. .... ..... .............. ........................................... . 
lnfraslrucilre .............................................................. . 
Motor Vehicles ............................................................ . 
Machlnel)' and Equiixnent ......................................... . 

Total DepeclableCSllital Assets •.................•.......•..... 

Less Accumulated Depreciation: 
Buildings ..................................................................... . 
lrlraslrucllre ........... ................................................... . 
M>tor Vehicles ............................................ ................ . 
Machilery and Equtixnent ........................................ .. 

Total AccumuJaled Depredation ................................ . 

Total Depreciable Capital Assets (Net) ..................... . 

3~,694.888 

56,539,010 
42,274,594 
9,367,522 
4,.715,375 

~jfil 

(21,678,788) 
{9,585,811) 
(6,369,813) 
!2,52-4.163) 

(40.158.575) 

72.737.92$ 

GOVERNMENTALACTMTIES CAPITAL ASSETS. NET .... $104 432 819 

BuSIESS·T'IPE AcTMTIEs: 

Noo-OepnlCiable Capital AsselS: 
Connuction In Prog1118$......................................... .... s 347 .504 

Total Non-Oepreclable Capital Assels ....................... . 

Oepieclable Capital Assets: 
Buildings ..................................................................... . 
M>1or Vehicles ............................................................ . 
Equipment ................................................................. . 

Total Oepl8Ciable Capital Assets ................ .............. . 

Less Accumulaled DepreciatOO: 
Buldlngs ............................ ......... ..................... ... ...... . 
Motor Vehicles ..................•...........•...................•....... 
Equipment ..................... ..... . ................................... ... . 

Total Accunlllated DepfedadOn ............................... . 

Total Depieciable Capital Assets (Net) ..................... .. 

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTMTIES CAPITAL ASSETS, NET ....... . I 

347.504 

1t 972.263 
53,456 

455.l§Z 

12480871 

(2,555,SIKl) 
(34,656) 

j1~5,225l 

~.Z~M§ll 

a Z35.010 

]0 !'.ill~ 51§ 

23,3!M,882 

(546,700) 

12,973 

1533.721) 

142.880 

142,880 

1390.84n 

s 23®'035 

s 

s 

8,989,87& 

2,758,093 

425,299 

-~ 
3,517,655 

(1 ,005.462) 
(629,518) 
(912,503) 
1388,9l!l 

C2,936,416l 

581,239 

s 957] 114 

s 

14,184 
aM~Z 

49721 

(i19,626) 
(9,636) 

l§l ,682) 

(~,944) 

!~Z.223) 

(S 24Z223) 

$ 
(2J58,Q93l 

12.758,(193) 

(125,797) 
1355,647) 

(481,-444) 

98.255 
248,007 

346,322 

(135,122) 

s 12 893 215\ 

s 

s 

ROMAN TORO & CO.. CSP C ert[/ii!d Public Accountants and Business Consultants 
PO BOX 30.JJ Yr/UCO PR 00698-30./3 · TEL. (787) 856-6220 · FrlX: (787) 856-6233 

BAlANcE 
Jl.t-E30, 

2007 

$ 47,609,940 
13,711,612 

s 61,321,552 

s 58,750.403 
42,274,594 
9,667,024 
4,706.961 

115398,985 

(22.541,370) 
(10,215,329) 
(7,184,061) 
(2,665,029) 

(42,605,789) 

72,793,196 

$134 ]14748 

$ 347,504 

347,504 

11.sn.263 
67,640 

490,689 

12530592 

(2,nS,606) 
(44,292) 

(222,90Zl 

ia.042,805) 

948ZJSZ 

s 9 83529] 
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COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADILLA. PUERTO RICO 

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007 

NOTE 8 CAPITAL ASSETS (continuation) 

DepreciaUon expenses were charged to governmental functions/programs as follows: 

Governmental Activities: 
Mayor and Municipal Legislature ................................................... . 
General Government ..................................................................... . 
Public Safety .................................................................................. . 
Public Works ...................•............................................................... 
Health and Sanitation .................................................................... . 
Culture and Recreation .................................................................. . 
Human Services and Welfare ........................................................ . 
Urban Developlnent ...................................................................... .. 

AMOUNT 

$ 81 ,079 
1,888,981 

89,521 
249,699 
318,758 

71,519 
59,273 

177.586 

Total Depreciation Expenses - Governmental Activities ............ S2.93§A16 

Business-Type Activities: 
AguadiUa's Waterfalls Aquatic Parle............................................... $ 163,996 
Aguadilla Ice Skating Arena............................................................ 132.948 

Total Depreciation Expenses-Business-Type Activities........... S 296.944 

ROMAN TORO & CO., CSP Certified Public Accountants and Business Consultants 
PO BOX 30./3 YA UCO PR 00698-J0./3 · TEL. (787) 856-6220 · FAX: (787) 856-6233 
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NOTE9 

Commonwealth of Puerto Rico 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADILLA, PUERTO RICO 

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007 

GENERAL LONG-TERM DEBTS 

A. GENERAL OBUGATIONS BONDS AND SPECIAL NOTES PAYABLE 

The principal long-term obligations of the Municipality are general obligations bonds and special notes issued to finance the 
construction and improvements of public facilities and purchase of equipment. The Municipality's obligations long-term debt retirements 
are appropriated and paid from resources accumulated in the Debt Service Fund (See Note 10). The special obligations long-term 
notes retirements are paid through retention made by the Municipal Revenue Collection Center from monthly advance of annual 
property tax and subsidy send to the Municipality. 

General obligations bonds and notes payable as of June 30, 2007, are comprised of the following individual issues: 

DESCRIPTION 

General Obligations Bonds: 

$590,000, Series 1999, for construction purposes, payable in semiannual Installments 
ranging from $20,000 to $70,000, excluding interests frcrn 4.86% to6.11%, through July 1, 2013 ..................................... .. 

$2,840,000, Series 1999, for construction purposes, payable in semiannual installments 
ranging from $105,000 to $300,000, exduding interests from 4.86% to 6.11%, through July 1, 2013 ................................. .. 

$5,065,000, Series 1999, for construction purposes, payable In semiannual installments 
ranging from $70,000 to $425,000, excluding interests from 4.86% to 6.56%, through July 1, 2023 ................................... . 

$3,210,000, Series 1999, for construction purposes, payable in semiannual installments 
rangilg from $45,000 to $270,000, excluding interests from 2.70% to 5.60%, through July 1, 2023 .................................... . 

$1, 700,000, Series 1999, for purchase of equipment purposes, payable in semiannual installments 
ranging from $115,000 to $230,000, excluding interest from 2.70% to 3.88%, through July 1, 2008 ................................... .. 

$805,000, Series 1999, for construction purposes, payable in semiannual installments 
ranging from $5,000 to $65,000, exduding interests from 2.70% to 5.60%, through July 1, 2023 ........................................ . 

$3,520,000, Series 2000, for construction piJrposes, payable in annual installments 
ranging from $130,000 to $370,000, excluding interests from 2.70% to 4,73%, through July 1, 2014 ................................. .. 

$1 ,340,000, Series 2000, for construction purposes, payable in annual installments 
ranging from $15,000 to $115,000, excluding interests from 2.70% to 5.60%, through July 1, 2024 ................................... .. 

$975,000, Series 2000, for construction purposes, payable in annual installments 
ranging from $65,000 to $135,000, excluding interests from 2.70% to 4.30%, lhrough July 1, 2010 .................................. .. 

$3,015,000, Series 2001, for construction purposes, paya~e in annual installments ranging from $65,000 
to $285,000, excluding interests rrorn 2. 70% to 5.29%, through July 1, 2020 ....................................................................... . 

$2, 165,000, Series 2001, for construction purposes, payable in annual installments ranging from $25,000 
to $190,000, for construction purposes, excluding interests from 2.70% at 5.60%, through July 1, 2025 ............................. . 

$405,000, Series 2003, for construction purposes, payable in annual installments ranging from 
$50,000 to $70,000, excluding interests from 5.00% to 6.00%, l'lrough July 1, 2010 .......................................................... .. 

$1 ,255,000, Series 2003, for construction purposes, payable iri annual Installments ranging from 
$25,000 to $95,000, excluding interests from 4.37% to 6.00%, through July 1, 2028 .......................................................... .. 

ROA-l1N TORO & CO, CSP Certified Publtc Accountants and Business Consultants 
ro BOX 30./3 }'AVCO PR 00698-30./3 . TEL. (787) 856-6220 . FAX: (787) 856-6233 

AMOUNT 

$ 365,000 

1,710,000 

4,290,000 

2,710,000 

445,000 

685,000 

2,340,000 

1,185,000 

480,000 

2,535,000 

1,955,000 

250,000 

1,180,000 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADILLA, PUERTO RICO 

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007 

NOTE 9 GENERAL LONG-TERM DEBTS (cont1n:.11t1on) 

DESCRIPTION 

General Obligations Bonds: 

$565,000, Series 2003, for purchase of equipment purposes. payable in semiannual installments 
ranging from $65,000 to $100,000, exciuding interests from 5.00% to 6.00%. through July 1, 2009 ................ . 

$1,795,000, Series 2005, for construction purposes, pa~able in semiannual installments ranging 
from $35,000 to $120,000, excluding interests from 4.37% to 5.00%, through July 1. 2029 .............................. . 

$1, 795,000, Series 2005, for construction purposes, payable in i;emiannual installments ranging 
from $$35,000 to $120,000, excluding interests from 3.27% to 5.00%, through July 1. 2029 ............................ . 

$1,935,000, Series 2005, for construction purposes, payable in semiannual installments ranging 
from $35,000 to $130,000, excluding interests from 4.27% to 5.00%, through July 1, 2029 ............................. .. 

$3, 130,000, Series 2006, for construction purposes, payable in semiannual installments ranging 
from $50,000 to $240,000, exc:luding interests from 6.00% to 6.50%, through July 1, 2030 ............................. . 

$1,010,000, Series 2005, for construction purposes, payable in semiannual installments ranging 
from $40,000 to $95,000, excluding interests from 4.27% to 5.00%, through July 1, 2019 ............................... .. 

Total General Obligations Bonds ...................................................................................................................... . 

Special Obligations Notes: 

$12,995,000, Series 2002, for construction purpose. payable in annual installments of 
$650,000, excluding interests at 5.00%. !hrough August 1, 2022 (HUD-Section 108 Loan) ............................ . 

$4,795,000, Series 2003, for construction purpose, payable in annual installments ranging 
from $75,000 to $370,000. excluding interests from 5.00% to 6.00%, through July 1, 2027 ............................. . 

$250,000, Series 2005, for construction purpose, payable in annual installments ranging 
from $31,000 to $41,000, excluding interests at4.75%, through July 1, 2012 ................................................. .. 

$250,000, Series 2005, for purchase of equiprr.ent purpose, payable in semiannual installments ranging 
from $5.000 to $20,000, excluding interests at 5.00%, through July 1, 2029 ..................................................... . 

$1,245,000, Series 2005, for purchase of equipment purpose, payable in annual installments ranging 
from $155,000 to $203,000, excluding interests at 4.50% , through July 1, 2012 ............................................. .. 

$4,220,000, Series 2006, for construction purpose, which principal payment is unknown, 
excluding interests at 4.25%, unknown maturity date ........................................................................................ .. 

ROMAN TORO & CO., CSP Certified Public Accountants and Business Consultants 
PO BOX 30./3 YA UCO PR 00698-30./3 • TEL. (787) 856-6220 · FAX: (787) 856-6233 

AMOUNT 

$ 275,000 

1,720,000 

1,720,000 

1,860,000 

3,080,000 

920.000 

29.705.000 

10,395,000 

4,340,000 

219,000 

240,000 

928,000 

2,979,100 
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COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADILLA, PUERTO RICO 

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007 

NOTE 9 GENERAL LONG·TERM DEBTS (continllltion) 

Special Obligations Bonds 

$1,940,000, Series 2006, for construction purpose, which principal payment in unknown, excluding 
interests at 4.50%, unknown maturity date ......................................................................................................... . 

$2, 105,000, Series 2006, for construction purpose, which principal payment in unknown, which 
interest payment is unknown, unknown maturity date ..................... .................................................................. .. 

$690,000, Series 2006, for construction purpose, which principal payment in unknown, which 
interest payment is unknown, unknown maturity date ............. ......................................................................... .. 

$3, 180,000, Series 2005, for construction purpose, which principal payment in unknown, which 
interest payment is unknown, unknown maturity date ........................................................................................ . 

$9,340,000, Series 2004, for construction purpose, payable in semiannual instaUments ranging 
from $225,000 to $660,000, excluding interests at 5.00%, unknown maturity date ........................................... .. 

Total Special Obligations Bonds ....................................................................................................................... . 

Total General and Special Obligations Bonds .................................................................................................. . 

$1 ,096,534 

10,738 

156,988 

697,798 

9,340,000 

30.403.158 

$60.108.156 

The Municipality's general obligations Jong-term notes retirements are appropriated and paid from resources accumulated in the debt 
service fund (see Note 10). The special obligations long-term notes retirements are paid through retention made by the Municipal 
Revenue Collection Center from monthly advance of annual property tax and subsidy sent to the Municipality. 

The annual requirements to amortize the general and special obligations outstanding as of June 30, 2007 are as follows: 

YEAR ENDING PRINCl?AL INTEREST TOTAL 
JUNE30, PAYMENT PAYMENT PAYMENT 

2008 $ 2,562,000 $ 2,451,388 $ 5,013,388 
2009 2,716,000 2,284,635 5,000,635 
2010 2,596,000 2,112,934 4,708,934 
2011 2,630,000 1,945,902 4,575,902 
2012 2,552,000 1,948,971 4,500,971 

2013-2017 11,451,000 7,798,721 19,249,721 
2018-2022 11,675,000 4,737,408 16,412,408 
2023-2027 7,475,000 1,627,317 9,102,317 
2028-2030 2,170,000 218,071 2,388,071 
Un matured 14.281.158 14,281,158 

TOTAL $60.108,158 $25.125.347 585,233,505 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADILLA, PUERTO RICO 

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007 

NOTE 9 GENERAL LONG·TERM DEBTS (continuation) 

B. OTHER LONG· TERM DEBTS 

DESCRIPTION 

Property Taxes - MRCC .......................... ,, .. 
LIMS,,,,,,,., .. ,,,,, ..... ,, .. ,,,., .. ,,,,, ..... ,.,, ...... ,., .... ,, 
Landfill Closure and Postdosure ................ .. 
Claims .. ,,., .... ,., .. , ... , ........ , ....... , ..... , ... ,, .. ,,,,.,., 
Compensated Absences ............................. . 

TOTAl,,., .. ,,, .. ,.,,,.,, ... ,.,,,,, ... ,,,,,, .. , .... ,,,, .. 

C. CHANGES IN GENERAL LONG· TERM DEBTS 

BALANCE 
JULY 1, 
2006 

$ 126,158 

521,080 
200,000 

4.667.183 

L5,51§,421 

New 
ISSUES 

$ 
587,549 

1,64~,999 

S 2123Z.~8 

The following is a summary of changes in long-tenn debts for the year ended June 30, 2007: 

BALANCE RETIREMENTS BALANCE 
JULY 1, NEW AND JUNE30, 

DESCRIPTION 2006 ISSUES ADJUSTMENT 2007 

General,, ...... $31,205,000 $ $ 1,500,000 $29,705,000 
Special .,, ...... 29,790,446 1,529,712 91'!,000 30,403,158 
Others .......... 5,514,421 2,237,548 1,828,345 5,923,624 

TOTAL .. , S661509186Z S 3,Z6Z1~ ~ ~.245,345 S66.031 1Z8~ 

NOTE 10 DEBT RETIREMENT 

RETIREMENTS 
AND 

ADJUSTMENT 

$ 
(93,233) 

(521 ,080) 

(1,214,032} 

(Sj 1828.34~} 

AMOUNTS 
DUE WITHIN 
ONE YEAR 

$ 1,595,000 
967,000 

3,094,815 

i 5,6~.815 

BALANCE 
JUNE30, 

2007 

$ 126,158 
494,316 

200,000 
5,103,150 

s 5,~23,6~ 

AMOUNTS 
DUE AFTER 
ONE YEAR 

$28,110,000 
29,436,158 
2,828,§09 

i§0,3~196Z 

Revenues of the debt service fund consists of the ad-valorem property taxes which are recognized as revenue when collected from 
taxpayers and reported by the Municipal Revenue Collection Center of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico to the Municipality (See Note 
11). 

These property taxes are accumulated by the Municipal Revenue Collection Center in costs of the general obligations bonds issued by 
the Municipality (See Note 9). Payments are made to the Government Development Bank of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico from 
such accumulated funds by the Municipal Revenue Collectif>n Center of Puerto Rico. 

ROMAN TORO & CO .. CSP Certified Public Accountants and Business Consultants 
PO BOX 30./3 YA UCO PR 00698-3043 · TEL. (787) 856-6220 · FAJi.': (787) 856-6233 
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NOTE 11 PROPERTY TAXES 

COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADILLA, PUERTO RICO 

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007 

The Municipal Revenue Collection Center of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico is responsible for the assessment of au real and 
personal property located within the Municipality and for the levy, administration and collection of the corresponding tax contribution. 

The property tax contribution is levied each year over the appraised value of the property at the beginning of the calendar year. The 
real property assessment is based on the current value existing in the year 1957 and the personal property at the current value at the 
date of the assessment. 

The tax rate per annum is 8.53% for real property and 6.53% for personal property of which 1.03% of both belong to the 
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico and 7.50% and 5.50%, respectively, belongs to the Municipality. From the portion belonging to the 
Municipality, 6.00% and 4.00%, respectively, represents the Municipality's basic !ax rate that is appropriated for general purposes and 
therefore accounted for through the general funrl. 

The remaining portion belonging to the Municipality of 1.50% represents the ad-valorem property taxes withheld by the Municipal 
Revenue Collection Center of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico and restricted for debt service, which is accounted for through the 
debt service fund (See Note 10). The Municipality has reached the maximum statutory I.ax rate limit for the basic tax while there is no 
limitation for the ad-valorem tax rate. 

The Commonwealth of Puerto Rico grants oomplete real property tax exoneration on the first $15,000 has assessed valuation on 
residential units occupied by their owners. However, the Municipality receives the full amount levied, except for residential units 
assessed at less than $3,500 on which a complete exemption is granted. The Municipal Revenue Collection Center, instead of the 
property taxpayer, becomes the source of payment in these cases. 

The Municipality grants a complete exemption from personal property taxes up to an assessment value of $50,000, to retailers with an 
annual net sales volume of less than $150,000. The Municipal Revenue Co!lectiOn Center advances to the Municipality, on monthly 
payments, 100% of the contribution assessed over property for each fiscal year. In accordance to Law, these advances will be 
contributions by the Municipal Revenue Col:ection Center from taxpayers. The Municipal Revenue Collection Center periodically 
informs to the Municipality the amounts collected from taxpayers and applied to outstanding advances. 

The Municipality records as revenue in the general fund the property tax contribution when received from monthly advances from 
Municipal Revenue Collection Center. Due to the fact that collections of property tax are applied to the advances of property tax paid 
by the Municipality Revenue Collection Center, the amortization of the advance at end of year was not available due to that is in 
process of verification by external auditors. 

RO!vl4N TORO & CO., CSP Certffied Public Accountants and Business Consultants 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADILLA, PUERTO RICO 

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007 

NOTE 12 VOLUME OF BUSINESS TAX 

The volume of business tax is levied each year based on the prior year's gross revenues for all commercial and industrial organizations 
doing business in the Municipality and which are not totally or partially exempt from this tax under the Industrial Incentives Laws of the 
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. All taxpayers are required to file their declarations by April 23 of each year. The tax rates are as 
follows: 

a. 1.50% for financial institutions and savings and loan associations. 

b. 0.40% for all other organizations. 

Taxes are payable in two equal semi-annual installments on July 1 and January 1 following the date of levy. If they are paid with 
declaration, the taxpayer is granted a 5% of discount Collections of taxes during current fiscal year, applicable to the next fiscal year, 
are recorded as deferred revenues in the General Fund. 

NOTE 13 INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUES 

Intergovernmental revenues consist primarily of funds received from the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, "in lieu of tax" payments from 
the quasi-public corporation, Puerto Rico 8ectric Power Authority, and federal financial assistance received from federal government 

Grants and subsidies received from the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico and federal agencies include, among others, a general subsidy 
for urban development and capital improvements. Intergovernmental revenues are accounted for through the General Fund except for 
those directly related to urban development and capita! improvements, which are accounted for through the Special Revenue and the 
Capital Project Funds. Federal Financial Assistance is recorded in the Special Revenue Fund. 

NOTE 14 EMPLOYEE'S RETIREMENT PLAN 

The Employee's Retirement System of the Government of Puerto Rico and its Instrumentalities (ERS) is the administrator of a cost­
sharing multiple-employer retirement system established by the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. The ERS was created under the Act 
447, approved on May 15, 1951, as amended, and became effective on January 1, 1952. ERS covers au regular employees of the 
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico alld its instrumentalities and of certain municipalities and components units not covered by their own 
retirement systems. 

Participation is mandatory except for members of the Legislature, Government Secretaries, Head of Agencies and Public 
Instrumentalities, Assistants to the Governor, the ComptroUer of the Puerto Rico, Gubernatorial Board and Committee appointees and 
Experimental Service Station employees. ERS provides retirement death and disability benefits. DisabHity retirement benefits are 
avaHable to members for occupational and non-occupational disabilities. Retirement benefits depend upon age at retirement and 
number of years of credited service. Benefits vest after ten years of plan participation. 

The Municipality adopted the requirements of GASBS No. 25 for all the career employees that are covered under the Commonwealth 
of Puerto Rico Employee's Retirement System, a multiple-employer public employee retirement system, established by State Laws. 

Under the plan, the employees and employer po:1ions are contributed, for which, the employee amount is withheld from salaries. 
Covered employees are required by Commonwealth statute to contribute 5.775% for the first $550 of monthly salary plus 8.275% for 
the excess of this amount, or on the alternative, 8.275% of all salary. The Municipality contributes to the system 9.275% of the 
participating employee's salaries. 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADILLA, PUERTO RICO 

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007 

NOTE 14 EMPLOYEE'S RETIREMENT PLAN (continuation) 

Law Number 305 of September 24, 1999, amendments the Act Number 447 that establish a savings program. All employees active in 
the system as of December 31, 1999 may elect to transfer from define contribution programs to the new savings program (a defined 
contribution plan). Employees in the savings program may now contribute from a minimum of 8.275% up to a maximum of 10% of their 
monthly salary, and will invested in an account which will either: (a) earn a fixed rate based on the two-year Constant Maturity Treasury 
Note or, (b} earn a rate equal to 75% of the return of the System's investment portfolio (net of management fees), or (c) ecwn a 
combination of both alternatives. 

If at time of retirement accumulated benefits amount to $10,000 or less may elect to receive a lump sum distribution up to the 
accumulated benefits. Under the new program the retiremen~ ags is reduced from 65 to 60 for those employees who joined the current 
plan on or after April 1, 1990. 

The pension benefit for participants who retire with less than 30 years of service is computed at the rate of 1Yz% of their average 
compensation of each year of credii service for the remaining years. The System also provides for death and disability benefits and the 
assets of the System pertaining to the participant employees. 

A variety of significant actuarial assumptions are usect to detennine the standard measure of the pension benefit obligation and these 
assumptions are summarized below: 

a. The present value of the future pension payments was computed by using a discount of 9%. 

b. Future pension payments reflect an assumption of a 6% salary increase. 

All employees that do not elect to transfer for the new program and who at the time of employment are 55 years old or less are eligible 
to participate in the System. Pension benefits for participants with 30 years of service are as follows: 

YEARS 
OF SERVICE 

30ormore 

30ormore 

30ormore 

PARTICIPANT'S 
AGE 

55or less 

58ormore 

65ormore 

PENSION BENEFITS 

65% of the average of the three years of highest salary during the employee's service period. 

75% of the average of the three years of highest salary during the employee's service period. 

75% of the average of the three years of highest salary during the employee's service period 
(employees started working after April 1, 1990). 

The amount of the total pension benefit obligation is based on a standardized measurement established by GASBS No. 27, Financial 
Reporting for Defined Benefit Pensicn Plans 1Jnd Notes D~w/osure for Defined Contributions Plans. The standardized measurement is 
the actuarial present value of estimated defined pension benefits, adjusted for the effects cf projected salary increases and step-rate 
benefits, estimated to be payable in the futJJre as a res1Jlt of employee services performed to date. The measure is intended to help 
users assess the System's funding status on a going-concern basis, assess progress made in acrumulating sufficient assets to pay 
benefits when due, and make comparisons among other public retirement systems. The measure is independent of the actuarial 
funding method used to determine contributions to the plan. 

The membership of retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits and terminated employees entitled to benefits, but not yet 
receiving benefits, and active employees and the distribution of active employees between vested and non-vested is not readily 
available. 
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COMM0NWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADILLA, PUERTO RICO 

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007 

NOTE 14 EMPLOYEE'S RETIREMENT PLAN (continuation) 

C'.ontributions in 2007 and prior years were made based on percentages established by the law. Such percentage has not been based 
on actuarial studies, as required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. An actuarial compilation 
of the annual contribution applicable to the Municipality has not been prepared. Accordingly, the accounts by which the actual 
contributions differ from the required actuarial contributions are not !mown. 

The total pension expenditures recorded in the category of administration for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007 was as follow: 

Required 

Actual 

LAWN0.447 

$468.382 

$468.3?.2 

SYSTEM2000 

s3se.m 

S356.Q91 

All employees who at the time of employment arc 55 yeArs old or less are eligibie to participate in the System. No benefit is payable if 
the participant receives a refund of his accumulated cor;tributions. 

The historical trend information regard!ng the accumulation of assets and pension benefit obligation in the ERS is not available. For the 
ten-year trend information, refer to the separately issued financial statements of the ERS as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 
2007. The P.R. Retirement Plan Administration provides additional information of the ERS. They issue a publicly available financial 
report that Includes financial statements and required supplementary information for ERS, as a component unit of the Commonwealth 
of Puerto Rico. That report may be obtained by writing to the Administration at PO Box 42003, Minillas Station, San Juan, PR 00940. 

NOTE 15 CONTINGENCIES 

A. CLAIMSANDJUDGMENTS 

The Municipality is, at present, a defendant in a number of legal matters that arise from alleged improper application of policies and 
negligence In the ordinary course of the Municipality's activities. The legal counsel of the Municipality has advised that at this stage in 
the proceedings of lawsuits he cannot offer an opinion as to the probable outcome, with the exception of various uninsured lawsuits for 
which our legal counsel estimate in $200,000 the probable unfavorable outcome. 

In addition, the Municipality is a defendant or co-defendant in several legal proceedings, which are in discovery stage. Certain of these 
claims are covered by insurance. Legal counsel with the information currenUy ava~able can not determine the final outcome of these 
claims. Accordingly, the financial statements do not iricfude adjusbnent, if any, that could result from the resolution of this legal 
proceeding. HowAver, it has been the Municipality's experience that such actions are setued for amounts substantially less than the 
claimed amounts. 

B. FEDERAL GRANTS 

In the normal course of operations, the Municipality receives grants from various Federal and State agencies. The grant programs are 
subject to audit by agents of the granting authority, the purpose of which is to ensure compliance with conditions precedent to the 
granting of funds. Any liabnity for reimbursement which may arise as the result of these audits is not believed to be material. 

ROMAN TORO & CO .. CSP Certified Public Accoumants and Business Consultants 
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COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUAOILLA, PUERTO RICO 

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007 

NOTE 16 ESTIMATED MUNICIPAL SOLID WASTE LANDFILL CLOSING COSTS 

According to the Environmental Protection Agency's (EPA), the Municipality fulfill with regulation related with certain closure functions 
and postclosure monitoring and maintenance procedures. Accordingly, the Municipality has not other obligation related to this matter, 
and proceeds to adjust the liability balance in the &mount of $338,068 to the Unrestricted Net Assets (see Note 17). 

NOTE 17 NET ASSETS AND FUND BALANCES RESTATEMENTS 

During fiscal year 2003-2004, the Municipality implemented several new acrounting standards and an interpretation Issued by GASB. 
As part of the implementation of the new standards, during the current fiscal year 2005-2006, the Municipality continued the 
documentation of capital assets not previously reported and the inventory of infrastructure. In addition, other adjustments related with 
unrecognized revenues and adjustments to long-term debt are recorded. 

The following schedule reconciles the June 30, 2006 Net Assets, as previously reported to Beginning Net Assets, as restated, July 1, 
2006, for Governmental and Business Type Activities. 

Net Assets, as Previously Reported, At June 30, 2006 ................... .. 

Adjustment to Capital Assets ............................................................ . 
Adjustment to CDBG Revenues ....................................................... . 
Elimination of Land Fill Debts ........................................................... . 
Adjustment to Long-term Debts ....................................................... . 

Beginning Net Assets, as Restated, At July 1, 2006 ......................... . 

NOTE 18 FUTURE ADOPTION OF ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENT 

GoVERNMENTAL 
ACTIVITIES 

$ 92,037,212 

23,004,035 
1,300,000 

338,068 
(714.807) 

$115.964.508 

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASS) issued the following pronouncement that does not apply to the Municipality: 

GASBS No. 43, Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans (Period beginning after 
December 15, 2006) 

GASBS No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefit Other Than Pension (Period 
beginning after December 15, 2007) 

GASBS No. 48, Sales and Pledges of Receivables and Future Revenues (Period beginning after December 15, 2006) 

GASBS No. 49, Pollution Remediation (Period beginning after December 15, 2007) 

GASBS No. 50, Pension Disclosures (Period beginning after June 15, 2007) 

GASBS No. 51 , Intangible Assets (Period beginning after June 15, 2009) 

END OF NOTES 
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADILLA, PUERTO RICO 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENT ARY INFORMATION 
BUDGET ARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE- GENERAL FUND 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007 

lilLl!Xill Alla.Im 
ORli!N#J. FINAi. AcTUAL AMOUNTS 

BUDGETARY FUND BALANCE, JULY 1, 2006 ·- -··-· I 2.120,112 s 2.,720,1j2 $ 2,720,112 

Resources (Inflows): 

Property Taxes ............................................................ 6,123,580 8,123,580 8,428,708 
Volume of Business Taxes .......................................... 7,332,979 8,129,699 9,132,473 
Intergovernmental Revenues ...................................... 6,182,101 6,530,552 6,652,273 
License and Permits .................................................... 1,759,570 1,347,570 1,853,366 
Interest ... .... ................................................................. 8S4.000 854,000 2,269,507 
Mscellaneous ....................................... ....................... 710,920 710,200 710,913 
Operating T ransfers.fn ................................................. 1,036,083 1,036,083 

Total Resources (lnftows) ....................................... 2~.~3,150 26,Z31,684 30,083,323 

Amounts Avalable for Appropriation ....................... 27,~3~2 29,451,796 32,803,4~ 

Charges to Appropriations (Outflows): 

Mayor and Municipal Legislature ................................. 1,229,282 1,649,900 1,595,363 
General Government ................................................... 12,551,513 15,821,261 14,701,986 
Public Safety ............................................. ................... 1,706,619 1,600,155 1,583,661 
Public Wori<s ......................................... ....................... 1,426,089 1,658,232 1,574,243 
Culture and Recreation ................................................ 1,225,874 929,364 905,555 
Health and Sanitatloo .................................................. 2,439,618 2,841,482 2,806,678 
Human Services and Welfare ...................................... 3,245,956 3,072,241 3,043,258 
Ulban Development ............................ ........ .... ............. 406,696 1.417,185 1,401,457 
capital Outlays ............................................................ 88.350 252,555 416,656 
Transfers to Other Funds ............................................ 64~, 153 1 ,61 4,11~ 822,3~5 

Total Charges to Appropriations ............................... 24.~3,150 30,856,5Z8 28,§51,382 

BUDGETARY FUND BALANCE, JUNE 30, 2001-.. -·. s 2.z~.u2 IU.~.1.12) s ~a~a.ma 

See accompanying Notes ID Required Supplemenlaly lnfonnation 

ROMAN TORO & CO., CSP Certijit!d Public Accounwnts and Business Consultants 
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VAlllAHCE WITH 
FINAL BuOOET 

s 

305,128 
1,002,n4 

121,721 
505,796 

1,415,507 
713 

~.;i§1 ,639 

3,351,639 

54,627 
1,1 19.275 

16,294 
83,989 
23,809 
34,804 
28,983 
15,728 

(164,101) 
m1.788 

2,005,196 

s ~.a5U~5 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RJCO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADILLA, PUERTO RICO 

BUDGET ARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - GENERAL FUND 
NOTE TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007 

NOTE A Explanation of Differences between Budgetary Inflows and Outflows and GAAP Revenues and Expenditures 

GENERAL FUND 

Sources/Inflows of Resources: 

Actual Amounts (Budgetary Basis) "Available for Appropriation• from the 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule (See Page 52) ....................................................................................... . $ 32,803,435 

Difference - Budget to GAAP: 

Transfers from other funds are inflows of budgetary resources but are not 
revenues for financial reporting purposes. ..... .... .. .. .... .... . ...... .. .. ............................................................. .. (1,036,083) 

The Fund Balance at the Beginning of Year is a budgetary resource but is not a 
Current-Year Revenue for financial reporting purposes .......................................................................... .. (2. 720.112) 

Total Revenues as Reported on the Statemsnt of Governmental Funds Revenues, 
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance (See Page 24) ...................................................................... . $ 29.047.240 

Uses/Outflows of Retources: 

Actual Amounts (Budgetary Basis) "Total Charges to Appropriation· from the 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule (See Page 52) ...................................................................................... .. $ 28,851,382 

Difference - Budget to GAAP: 

Encumbrances for supplies and equipment ordered but not received are reported 
in the year the order is placed for budgetary reporting purposes .............................................................. . (1 ,183,645) 

Payments of encumbrances of prior year that are expenditures for financial ieporting 
purposes but are not outflows for budgetary purposes ............................................................................. . 1,109,337 

Transfers to other funds are outflows of budgatary resources but are not 
expenditures for financial reporting purposes ........................................................................................... . (822.325) 

Total Expenditures as Reported on the Statement of Governmental Funds Revenues, 
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance (See Page 24) ...................................................................... . $ 21.954.749 

NOTE B ExplanatJon of Differences between Budgetary Fund Balance and GAAP Fund Balance 

Budgetary Fund Balance, June 30, 2007 (See Page 52) ............................................................................. .. $ 3,952,053 

Timing Differences: 

CanceUation of Prior Year Encumbrances ................................................................................................ . 1,984,562 
Change in Encumbrances ......................................................................................................................... . 2,473,212 

Unrestricted Fund Balance, June 30, 2007 (See Page 22) ........................................................................... . s 8,~g9,8~Z 

ENO OF THIS SECTION 
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MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADILLA, PUERTO RICO 

SINGLE AUDIT SECTION 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007 
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COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADILLA, PUERTO RICO 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007 

FEDERAL PASS-THROUGH 
FEDERAL GRANT OR I PASS THROUGH CFDA ENTITY IDENTIFYING FEDERAL 

GRANTOR I PROGRAM OR CLUSTER TITLE NUMBER NUMBER EXPENDITURES 

U.S. Department of Agriculture: 

Direct Programs: 

Community Facilities Loans and Grants ..................................... 10.766 N/AV 

Pass-Through Puerto Rico Department of Education: 

Child and Adult Care Food Program {USDA) ............................. 10.558 CCC-07-AG 

Total U.S. Department of Agriculture .......................................... 

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development: 

Direct Programs: 

Community Development Block Grants/ 
Entitlement Grants (CDBG) ...................................................... 14.218 

Urban Development Action Grant.. ............................................. 14.221 

Emergency Shelter Grant Program ............................................ 14.231 

Home Investment Partnership Program (HOME) ...................... 14.239 

Section 8 Rental Housing ChOice Vouchers ............................... 14.871 

Pass-Through Puerto Rico Department of Housing: 

Section 8 Low Rent ..................................................................... 14.850 N/AV 

Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development ... 

U.S. Department of Justice: 

Direct Programs: 

Local Law Enforcement Block Grants Program ......................... 16.592 
Weed and Seed .......................................................................... 16.595 

Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development.. .... 

Subtotal Expenditures of Federal 
Awards (Balance Carry Forward) 

ROMAN TORO & CO., CSP Certified Public Accountants and Business Consultants 
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$4,362.320 

518,563 

4,880.883 

2,802,461 

5,548 

134,343 

564,297 

985,090 

427,683 

4,919,422 

4,159 
86,677 

90,836 

~9 891 j~j 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADILLA, PUERTO RICO 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS, Continued 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007 

FEDERAL 
FEDERAL GRANTOR/ PASS THROUGH CFDA 

GRANTOR /PROGRAM OR CLUSTER TITLE NUMBER 

Subtotal of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
(Balance Brought Forward) ........................................................... 

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services: 

Pass-Through Office of the Governor - Elderly Office: 

Special Program for Aging, Title Ill, Part B ................................ 93.044 
Special Program for Aging, Title Ill, Part C ................................ 93.045 

Pass-Through Administration for the Childhood Care 
and Integral Development: 

Head Start Program .................................................................... 93.600 
93.600 

Total U. S. Department of Health and Human Services ........... 

U.S. Department of Homeland Security: 

Pass-Through Office of the Governor 
Authorized Representative (GAR): 

Homeland Security Program ....................................................... 97.067 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS ............... 

See accompanying Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. 

PASS-THROUGH 
ENTITY IDENTIFYING 

NUMBER 

N/AV 
N/AV 

02-CH-0483-37 
02-CH-0483-38 

N/AV 

ROMAN TORO & CO., CSP Certified Public Accountants and Business Consultants 
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FEDERAL 
ExPENDffURES 

$ 9.891,141 

170,434 
192,013 

5,534,232 

5,896,679 

239,648 

Si&102Z1468 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUAOILLA, PUERTO RICO 
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007 

NOTE 1 GENERAL 

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes the federal grant activities of the Municipality of Aguadilla, Puerto 
Rico. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local 
Govemments, end Non-Pro/ft Organizations. Therefore, some amounts presented in this Schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or 
used in the preparation of, the general-purpose financial statements. The Municipaltty reporting entity is defined in Note (1) (A) to the general­
porpose financial statements. All federal financial awards received directly from federal agency as well as federal financial awards passed 
through other government agencies are included on the Schedule. 

NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

A. The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is prepared from Municipality's accounting records and is not intended to 
present financial position or the results of operations. 

B. The Municipality in accordance with the terms records the financial transactions and cond'rtions of the grants, which are consistent with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

C. Expenditures are recognized in the accounting period in which the liability is incurred, if measurable or when actually paid, whichever 
occurs first 

D. For the Section 8 - Rental Housing Choice Vouchers, the amount presented in the Schedule is the total revenues received from HUD. 
This policy is consistent with HUD's interpretation of Accounting Issue #10, which states that for the subsidy programs (such as Section 8), 
the federal awards expended would equal the net ACC subsidy for the PHA's fiscal period under audit. 

NOTE 3 FEDERAL CFOA NUMBER 

The CFOA numbers included in this Schedule are determined based on the program name, review of grant contract information and the Office of 
Management and Budgers Catalogue of Federal Domestic Assistance. 

NOTE 4 PASS-THROUGH GRANTOR'S NUMBER 

State or local government redistribution of federal awards to Llie Municipality, treated as if they were received directly from the federal 
government. OMB Circular A-133 requires the schedule to include the name of the pass-through entity and identifying number assigned by the 
pass- through entity for federal awards received as a subrecipient. Numbers identified as NIA are not applicable and numbers identified as N/AV 
are not available. 

NOTE 5 SUBRECIPIENTS 

Of the federal expenditures presented in the Schedule, the Municipality, provided federal awards to subrecipients as follows: 

TITLE NUMBER 

Community Development Block 
Grant-Entitlement Grants (CDBG) ................................................... .. 

Emergency Shelter Grant Program (ESG) .......................................... . 
HOME Investment Partnership Program (HOME) ............................. .. 

TOTAL ...................................................................................... .. 

NOTE 6 MAJOR PROGRAMS 

FEDERAL 
CFOA 

TO SUBRECIPIENTS 

14.218 
14.231 
14.239 

AMOUNT 
PROVIDED 

$210,021 
20,258 
95.494 

$325Il3 

Major programs are identified in the Summary of Audito(s Results Section of the Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. 

END OF NOTES 

PROGRAM 
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT 
OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 

GOVERNMENT AUDfflNG STANDARDS 

Honorable Mayor and Members of the 
Municipal Assembly 

Municipality of Aguaclilla, Puerto Rico 

POBox3043 
Vauco PR00698-3043 

Tel (787) 856-6220 
Fax (787) 856-6233 

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate 
remaining fund information of Municipality of Aguadllla, Puerto Rico, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2007, 
which collectively comprise the Municipality of Aguaclilla, Puerto Rico's basic financial statements and have issued 
our report thereon dated November 30, 2007. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit, we considered Municipality of Aguadilla, Puerto Rico's internal control over 
financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the 
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Municipality of 
Aguadilla, Puerto Rico's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Municipality of Aguadilla, Puerto Rico's internal control over financial reporting. 

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or emplOyees, in 
the normal course of performing their assigned funcoons, to prevent or detect misstatements on a timely basis. A 
significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that adversely affects the 
Municipality of Aguadilla, Puerto Rico's ability to initiate, authorize, record, process, or report financial data reliably in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles such that there is more than a remote likelihood that a 
misstatement of the Municipality of Aguadilla, Puerto Rico's financial statements that is more than inconsequential 
will not be prevented or detected by the Municipality of Aguaclilla. Puerto Rico's internal control. 

A material weakness is a sigrVficant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results in more than a 
remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the financial statements wiU not be prevented or detected by the 
Municipality of Aguadilla, Puerto Rico's internal control. 

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the imited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be significant 
deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting 
that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. 
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Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Municipality of Aguaclilla, Puerto Rico's financial 
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on 
the determination of financial statements amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our 
tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government 
Auditing Standards. 

This report is intended solely for the infonnation and use of management, Municipal Assembly, and federal awarding 
agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these 
specified parties. 

Yauco, Puerto Rico 
December 13, 2007 

Stamp #2263no was affixed 
to the original of this report 

2. .,.___ ..: y.:._. r;; 
ROMAN TORO & CO., CSP 
LICENSE #35 - IN FORCE 
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Certified Public Accountants 
Honesty - Integrity - Experience Jose D. Roman Toro, CPA, President 

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS 
APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL 

OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A·133 

Honorable Mayor and Members of the 
Municipal Assembly 

Municipality of Aguadilla, Puerto Rico 

Compliance 

We have audited the compliance of Municipality of Aguadllla, Puerto Rico with the types of compliance requirements 
described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that are applicable 
to each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2007. Municipality of Aguadllla, Puerto Rico's major 
federal programs are identified in the summary of audito~s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and 
questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to each of its 
major federal programs is the responsibility of Municipality of Aguadilla, Puerto Rico's management. Our responsibility is 
to express an opinion on Municipality of Aguadilla, Puerto Rico's compliance based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133 Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit 
Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 requre that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a 
direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence 
about-Municipality of Aguadilla, Puerto Rk;o's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures 
as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 
Our audit does not provide a legal determination of Municipality of Aguadilla, Puerto Rico's compliance with those 
requirements. 

In our opinion, Municipality of Aguadilla, Puerto Rico complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to 
above that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2007. 

Internal Control Over Compliance 

The management of Municipality of Aguadilla, Puerto Rico is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal 
control over compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to federal programs. 

In planning and perfooning our audit, we considered Municipality of Aguadilla, Puerto Rico's internal control over 
compliance with the requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program in order to 
determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion 
on the effectiveness of Municipality of Aguadilla, Puerto Rico's internal control over compliance. 
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Internal Control OVer Compliance. Continued 

A contro~deflCiency in an entity's internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control does not 
allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect 
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a 
control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that adversely affects the entity's ability to administer a federal 
program such that there is more than a remote likelihood that noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program that is more than inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the entity's internal control. 

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results in more than a 
remote likelihood that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be 
prevented or detected by the entity's internal control. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limlted purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be signifteant deficierteies or 
material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be 
material weaknesses, as defined above. 

Municipality of Aguadilla, Puerto Rico's response to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying 
schedule of findings and questioned costs. We did not audit Municipality of Aguadilla, Puerto Rico's response and, 
accordingly, we express no opinion on It. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, Mayor, others within the entity, Municipal 
Assembly, and federal awarding agerteies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by 
anyone other than these specified parties. 

Yauco, Puerto Rico 
December 13. 2007 

Stamp #2263771 was affixed 
to the original of this report 

u __ _: ,:;:: .,. /.:" 
~~TORO & CO., CSP 

LICENSE #35 - IN FORCE 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO.RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADILLA 
SCHEDl:JLE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007 

SECTION 1-SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS 

Financial Statements 

Type of auditor's report issued: 

Internal control over financial reporting: 

• Control deficiency identified? 

• Significant deficiency identified? 

• Material weakness (es) identified? 

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? 

Federal Awards 

Internal control over maior programs: 

• Control deficiency identified? 

• Significant deficiency identified? 

• Material weakness (es) identified? 

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for 
Major Programs: 

Any audit finding disclosed that are required to be reported 
in accordance with Section 510{a) of Circular A-133? 

Identification of Major Programs: 

CFDA Number 

[Kl Unqualified Opinion 

D Adverse Opinion 

D Yes 

D Yes 

D Yes 

D Yes 

D Yes 

D Yes 

D Yes 

[Kl Unqualified Opinion 

D Adverse Opinion 

(]] Yes 

Name of Federal Program or Cluster 
14.218 
14.871 
14.239 
10.558 
93.600 
10.766 

Community Development Block Grant - Entitlement Grants 
Section 8 - Rental Housing Choice Vouchers 
Home Investment Partnership Program 
Child and Adult Care Food Program 
Head Start Program 
Community Facilities Loans and Grants 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between 
Type A and Type 8 Programs: 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? 

SECTION II- FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS 

NONE 

$480,824 

D Yes 

SECTION Ill - FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COST 

NONE 

D Qualified Opinion 

D Disclaimer Opinion 

[K) None reported 

[K) None reported 

[K)No 

[Kl No 

[K) None reported 

[K) None reported 

[K) No 

D Qualified Opinion 

D Disclaimer Opinion 

GJ No 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADILLA, PUERTO RICO 
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007 

Year Finding 
Number Finding 

(1) Audit Findings that have been fully corrected or not noted during our audit: 

2006 2006-1 
The MunicipaHty did not propet1y allocate administrative and other indirect salaries 
among federal programs relating to HUD, and charged these costs to the CDBG 
program. 

(2) Audit Findings not corrected or partially corrected: 

NONE. 

(3) Corrective action taken Is significantly different from corrective action previously reported: 

NONE. 

(4) Audit findings are no longer valid: 

NONE. 

END OF SCHEDULE 

Number 

14.218 

CFDA 
Questioned 

Cost(s) 

None. 

- - - -

Comments 

Situation was corrected with re-assignment 
of tasks of certain employees. Grantor 
accepted corrective action taken. 
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